NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F
-

GENERAL INFORMATION

Stelux Holdings International Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda and the address
of its principal place of business is 27/F, Stelux House, 698
Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are
shown in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRS
Accounting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRS
Accounting Standards comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and with the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRS
Accounting Standards that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

As at 31 March 2025, included in current liabilities of the
Group are bank borrowings of approximately HK$241.890
million which contain a repayment on demand clause,
HK$81.515 million out of HK$241.890 million are bank
borrowings that are scheduled repayable within the next
twelve months, together with the related bank borrowings
interests of HK$16.569 million. However, as of that
date, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group was
only maintained at HK$83.339 million. This condition
may cause significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group
and the ability of the Group to continue to attain profitable
and positive cash flows from operations in the immediate
and longer terms.

Based on the Group’s credit history and historical
relationship with the banks, the directors of the Company
do not believe that it is probable that the banks will
demand immediate repayment of bank borrowing of
approximately HK$241.890 million but rather such
bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with their
scheduled repayment dates as disclosed in Note 6(a)(iv).
Accordingly, principal and interest payments due within
the next twelve months from the reporting date amounted
to HK$98.084 million.

In addition, in order to strengthen the Group’s liquidity in
the foreseeable future, the directors of the Company have
taken measures such as closing down under-performing
retail stores and implementing various cost control
measures to reduce the costs of operations. The Group
continues with the implementation of the aforementioned
measures in order to achieve further improvement of the
Group’s liquidity in short term and long-term periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The directors of the Company have taken into account the
cash requirements of the Group for the next twelve months
commencing from the end of the reporting period. With
unutilised banking facilities of approximately HK$89.022
million as at 31 March 2025, other potential sources of
funding, and continued adoption of the above measures,
the directors have therefore concluded that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to fully meet its
financial obligations when they fall due. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

(@ Application of new and revised HKFRS Accounting
Standards

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective
for the annual period beginning on or after 1 April
2024 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F
-

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS 3. MW RLIETEBMBEREER )

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@ Application of new and revised HKFRS Accounting (@ EAFITIRLETEBUMBBREER

53

Standards (Continued)

Adoption of Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current” and
Amendments to HKAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants” (collectively the “HKAS 1
Amendments”)

As a result of the adoption of the HKAS 1
Amendments, the Group changed its accounting
policy for the classification of borrowings as below:

“Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless,
at the end of the reporting period, the Group has a
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Covenants that the Group is required to comply
with, on or before the end of the reporting period,
are considered in classifying loan arrangements with
covenants as current or non-current. Covenants
that the Group is required to comply with after the
reporting period do not affect the classification.”

This new policy did not result in a change in the
classification of the Group's borrowings. The Group
did not make retrospective adjustments as a result of
adopting HKAS 1T Amendments.

Except for the above, other amendments and
interpretation listed above did not have any material
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

Revised HKFRS Accounting Standards in issue but
not yet effective

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretation, which are not effective for the year
ended 31 March 2025 and which have not been
adopted in these consolidated financial statements.
The Group has not early applied the following which
may be relevant to the Group:
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The directors of the Company are in the process
of making an assessment of what the impacts of
these new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation are expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements,
except for the following.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

Revised HKFRS Accounting Standards in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements”

HKFRS 18 will replace HKAS 1 “Presentation of
financial statements”, introducing new requirements
that will help to achieve comparability of the financial
performance of similar entities and provide more
relevant information and transparency to users. Even
though HKFRS 18 will not impact the recognition or
measurement of items in the consolidated financial
statements, HKFRS 18 introduces significant changes
to the presentation of financial statements, with a
focus on information about financial performance
present in the consolidated income statement, which
will affect how the Group present and disclose
financial performance in the consolidated financial
statements. The key changes introduced in HKFRS 18
relate to (i) the structure of the consolidated income
statement, (ii) required disclosures for management-
defined performance measures (which are referred
to alternative or non-GAAP performance measures),
and (iii) enhanced requirements for aggregation and
disaggregation of information.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing
the impact of applying HKFRS 18 on the presentation
and the disclosures of the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F
-

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g.
investment properties and certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS Accounting Standards requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
5.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below.

(@ Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March. Subsidiaries are
all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give
it the current ability to direct the relevant activities,
i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns. When assessing control, the Group considers
its potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability
to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(@)

Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
and any accumulated exchange reserve relating to
that subsidiary.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to the Company. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated balance sheet and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated income statement and statement
of other comprehensive income as an allocation of
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(@

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in
a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions (i.e.
transactions with owners in their capacity as owners).
The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the
owners of the Company.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(c) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker.

The Company has appointed the executive directors

as the chief operating decision makers to review the

operating results of the Group on a consolidated

basis and makes strategic decisions.

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(if)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HKS$,
which is the functional currency of the
Company and presentation currency of the
Group.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on initial
recognition using the exchange rates prevailing
on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at
the exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction date is the date on which
the company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary
items that are measured at fair value in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in income statement, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F
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4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EEGHEEER G
(Continued)
(d)  Foreign currency translation (Continued) (d) IMNERE )
(iii)  Translation on consolidation (iii)  FFHAMRIRE

The results and balance sheet of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

o income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transactions dates);
and

. all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign entities, and of borrowings, are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment
are repaid, the associated exchange differences
are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.
Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the

straight-line method to allocate their cost to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as

follows:

Leasehold land Shorter of remaining lease
term or useful life

Buildings Shorter of the unexpired
lease term or 20 to 50
years

Equipment and 3 to 10 years or over the

leasehold lease term
improvements

Furniture and fixtures 3 to 15 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(e)

®

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

An owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property is carried at fair value at the date of change
in use. Any revaluation increase arising on the
revaluation of such property is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property,
plant and equipment revaluation reserve, except
to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
for the same asset previously recognised in income
statement, in which case the increase is credited
to income statement to the extent of the decrease
previously expensed. A decrease in the carrying
amount arising on the revaluation of such property
is recognised in income statement to the extent that
it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the property,
plant and equipment revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that property.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement within “other losses/gains”.

Investment properties

Investment properties principally leasehold land and
buildings are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group.

Investment property is stated at fair value. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are recognised in income
statement for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
withdrawn from use. Any gain or loss on disposal
of an investment property is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the property and is recognised in income statement.
Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in Note 4(s).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(g Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Goodwill

Goodwill is subsequently measured as
disclosed in Note 4(j). Goodwill on acquisitions
of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The
units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes, being the
operating segments.

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks have an indefinite
useful life and are not amortised but tested
annually for impairment.

Technical know-how

Technical know-how acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The technical know-how has
a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 30 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet when
the Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
income statement.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for
offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be
set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy
or the termination of a contract.

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in two
categories:

o financial assets at amortised cost; and

J financial assets designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) with no recycling
of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments).

Financial assets at amortised cost

The Group classifies its financial assets at
amortised cost only if both of the following
criteria are met:

e the financial asset is held within a
business model with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
includes trade and other receivables, deposit
and bank balances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F
-

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EESTBEER @)
(Continued)
(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial (hy SRMIECEIRKLER A

67

instruments (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets designated at FVTOCI (Equity
investment)

The Group makes an election to designate its
equity investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained profits. It is not recycled through
income statement. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI,
are recognised in income statement as other
income.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets
are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

@

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

(ii)  Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRS Accounting
Standards. An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in income statement over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless,
at the end of the reporting period, the Group has a
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Covenants that the Group is required to comply
with, on or before the end of the reporting period,
are considered in classifying loan arrangements with
covenants as current or non-current. Covenants
that the Group is required to comply with after the
reporting period do not affect the classification at the
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

()

(k)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECL”") for all debt instruments not held
at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(k)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default
(a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when
or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(k)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the

simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1:

Stage 2:

Stage 3:

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs.

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL.

Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(k)

U]

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant
financing component, if any, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

(i) The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

()  Leases (Continued)

(1)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily laptops and office furniture. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised
as an expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to income
statement in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

0]

Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received,

. uses a build-up approach that starts with
a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit
risk for leases held by the group entities as
lessee, which does not have recent third-
party financing, and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease,
eg term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate
is available to the individual lessee (through
recent financing or market data) which has a
similar payment profile to the lease, then the
group entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(I)  Leases (Continued)

(1)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, except for the right-of-use assets that
meet the definition of investment property are
carried at fair value.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life
and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(I)  Leases (Continued)

(1)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will
be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in income statement if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(m)

(n)

(0)

Inventories

Raw materials, work-in-progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and
subcontracting fee. Costs are assigned to individual
items of inventory on the basis of weighted average
costs. Costs of purchased inventory are determined
after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale. Provision for inventories is recognised
in the consolidated income statement within “other
operating expenses”.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(p)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the
sale of watch products for general repairs of defects
occurring during the warranty period. Provisions
for these assurance-type warranties granted by the
Group on certain products are recognised based
on sales volume and past experience of the level of
repairs and returns, discounted to their present values
as appropriate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(q)

(r)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received a consideration (or an amount
of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays the consideration before the Group
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control of the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group;

or

(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(r)  Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan and the sponsoring employers of the
postemployment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(s)  Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised

when control of goods or services is transferred

to the customers at an amount that reflects the

consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

(i)

Sale of watch products

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised

at the point in time when control of the asset
is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the products.

Some contracts for the sale of products provide

customers with rights of return and volume

rebates. The rights of return give rise to variable

consideration.

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer
with a right to return the goods within
a specified period, the expected value
method is used to estimate the goods
that will not be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the
Group will be entitled. The requirements
in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates
of variable consideration are applied
in order to determine the amount of
variable consideration that can be
included in the transaction price. For
goods that are expected to be returned,
instead of revenue, a refund liability is
recognised. A right-of-return asset (and
the corresponding adjustment to cost of
sales) is also recognised for the right to
recover products from a customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(s)  Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Other income

Building management services income and
shared services income are recognised when
the services are rendered.

(i) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.

(iv)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method
by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

(v)  Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

()  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(u)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in income statement because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit and at the time of transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(u)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in income statement, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model of the Group
whose business objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through
sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for
such investment properties are measured based on
the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. The Group recognises
a deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised and a deferred tax liability
for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Employee benefits
(i) Pension obligations

Group companies operate various pension
schemes. The schemes are generally funded
through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds. The Group mainly
has defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly
administered pension plans on a mandatory
basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(v)  Employee benefits (Continued)

(1)

Pension obligations (Continued)

For the defined benefit retirement plans, the
liability recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by using the projected unit credit
method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using
appropriate interest rates of selected corporate
bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related pension obligation.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability which include actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), and any change
in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability) are recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise and will not be reclassified to income
statement.

Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period to
the net defined benefit liability. However, if
the Group remeasures the net defined benefit
liability before plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement, the Group determines net interest
for the remainder of the annual reporting
period after the plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement using the benefits offered under
the plan and the plan assets after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement and
the discount rate used to remeasure such net
defined benefit liability or asset, taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability or asset during the period resulting
from contributions or benefit payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

87

4.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 4. EESHBERER D
(Continued)
(v)  Employee benefits (Continued) v) EEEFN
(i) Pension obligations (Continued) (i) ABUKFIEIEAT )
Defined benefit costs are categorised as S AR A A BT
follows:
. Service cost (including current service o R R (BLIEE ET B R
cost, past service cost, as well as A - il 25 1 IR R A
gains and losses on curtailments and DA% A6 98 B 4 B ) Wi i %
settlements); JEE)

o Net interest expense or income; and
o Remeasurement.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in
the consolidated balance sheet represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined
benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of
any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plans or reduction in future
contributions to the plan.

Discretionary contributions made by employees
or third parties reduce service cost upon
payment of these contributions to the plan.

For long service payments (“LSP”) obligation
in Hong Kong, the Group accounts for the
employer mandatory provident fund (“MPF”)
contributions expected to be offsetted as a
deemed employee contribution towards the LSP
obligation in term of HKAS 19 paragraph 93(a)
and it is measured on a net basis. The estimated
amount of future benefit is determined after
deducting the negative service cost arising
from the accrued benefits derived from the
Group’s MPF contributions that have been
vested with employees, which are deemed to
be contributions from the relevant employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(v) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(1if)

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a
formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company’s shareholders
after certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(iv)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

Dividends distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 4, the directors are required to make
judgements (other than those involving estimations) that
have a significant impact on the amounts recognised and
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements (apart from those
involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

(@) Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon future operational performance
and the expected future operating cash inflows;
and the continuous availability of banking facilities.
Details are explained in Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)  Significant increase in credit risk

The ECL are measured as an allowance equal to
12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage
2 when its credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define
what constitutes a significant increase in credit
risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information.

(c)  Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options
exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive for the Group
to exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s
operation.

Generally, periods covered by an extension option in
other properties leases have not been included in the
lease liability because the Group could replace the
assets without significant cost or business disruption.
See Note 19 for further information.

The lease term is reassessed when there is
a significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control.
During the year, no lease term has been reassessed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F
-

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(d)  Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the directors have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are not held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s
deferred tax for investment properties, the directors
have adopted the presumption that investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered through sale.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next year, are discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(@) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

The Group assesses at least annually whether
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets exhibit any indications of impairment. The
recoverable amounts are determined based on value-
in-use calculation and fair value less cost of disposal.
The value-in-use calculation involves estimating
the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived
from continuing use of the asset and applying the
appropriate discount rate to those future cash flows.
The estimation of future cash flows and selection
of discount rate require the use of judgements and
estimates. Management believes that any reasonably
foreseeable change in any of the above key elements
in the value-in-use calculation would not result in
material additional impairment charges.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 March
2025 are disclosed in Note 17 and Note 19
respectively.

(b)  Fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including (1) current prices in an active
market for properties of a different nature, condition
and location, adjusted to reflect those differences;
(2) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and (3)
independent valuations.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at
31 March 2025 is disclosed in Note 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(c)  Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill
have suffered any impairment. The Group also
reviews goodwill for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the related
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amount has been determined based on
higher of value-in-use calculation and fair value less
cost of disposal. The calculation requires the use of
judgments and estimates.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 March
2025 and valuation assumption used in determining
recoverable amount is disclosed in Note 20.

(d)  Impairment of trademarks

Trademarks with an indefinite useful life are carried
at costs and are not amortised. Management tests
annually whether the trademarks suffered any
impairment by considering the economic benefit
to be generated from trademarks. The recoverable
amount is determined based on value-in-use
calculation. This calculation used pre-tax cashflows
projections based on financial budgets prepared
by management. Management determined the
financial budget based on past performance and
its expectations for the future market development,
which involved significant judgment and estimates.

The carrying amount of trademarks as at 31 March
2025 and valuation assumption used in determining
recoverable amount is disclosed in Note 20.

5.

B HI & EEfRE (A7)

fhEt RN E R 2 T ERIF (#)

(c)

(d)

R

G T A A P B 7 BB
AR B DA P R e SRR A
sl 1 0L A B B R IR R T A RE
W [ET B o R o 1 (B 21 £ 2% A
BTAAL S > AT e A B R M
i F R Y (B A A B
M E °

A20254E3 H31H » M HEmE &
7 B 7R AT A ] 4 R T R A (ELRGR
LR EE 200 155 -

T R DR {6 35 i A e A A S
PURSAS FHE o 4 B0 25 18 3 A A 2R
A REFEAM 4 - 5 AE IR R 7 2 5
ARART AR o T Wi ] < A % o D (D
JEGE o MRt RGET EE A A B P A Y
F1% 5 Y AL ) B < R T M A
H o L AR R 1 2R B S LR
5 8 R M e IR A Ho
W R E Rl B A st -

R2025%3H31H » P2 BRTH{E X
A7 B8 15 78 WA ] 4 E BT R A (LR R
LR EE 20 55 -

B () A RA A
2025 4FAFH)

94



95

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(e)  Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will reassess the estimations at
the end of each reporting period.

The allowance for inventories was made for the year
ended 31 March 2025 is disclosed in Note 23.

() Impairment of trade receivables

The Group estimates ECL on trade receivables using
a provision matrix. The provision rates are based
on aging of debtors as groupings of various debtors
taking into consideration the Group’s historical
default rates and forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in
the forward-looking information are considered.

As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of trade
receivables (net of impairment loss) is disclosed in
Note 24.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@

Financial risks

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board

of directors of the Company reviews and agrees

policies for managing each of these risks and they are

summarised below.

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
Macau, China and a number of countries
in Southeast Asia. Retail sales transactions
are mostly denominated in the functional
currencies of respective group entities. The
Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk
mainly arises from commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency
of the group entities to which they relate. The
Group considers its foreign currency exposure
as mainly arising from the exposure of the
Singapore dollar, Malaysian ringgit, Thai baht,
Renminbi and Swiss Franc against the Hong
Kong dollar. The Group regularly monitors its
exposures to foreign currency transactions.

The impact to the Group's (loss)/profit before
tax that might be resulted from the reasonable
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates
against the Hong Kong dollar to which the
Group has significant exposure as at the end of
the reporting date is summarised below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L
-

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MEREREE )
(@)  Financial risks (Continued) (@ BEisEMGE)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) SMEEME S ()
2025 2024
Decrease/ Increase/
(increase) (decrease)
Increase in loss Increase in profit
in foreign before in foreign before
exchange income exchange income
rate tax rate tax
MRERIEE R 38 T i
SMEE =R R A1 HEE jfE % #im,/
B8 N (48 tn) 3G ()
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Singapore dollar B oo 5% 884 5% 959
Malaysian ringgit TG ARG B 4 5% (720) 5% (754)
Thai baht B3 7S 5% (4,686) 5% (4,687)
Renminbi NG 5% 936 5% 826
Swiss franc ity % BB 5% 20,745 5% 21,683

Decrease in the above foreign exchange rates gl A BE BE 380 5% (2024
by 5% (2024: 5%) would affect the loss (2024: 05 %) % B B BT s A
profit) before income tax by the same amount (2024 = BRI F]) EE A A 7]
but in the opposite direction. BRUEAH S5 T8 B2 o

T 5 e

(ii)  Interest rate risk (i1)

97

The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no

F P A 4 R ST 0 T KR
B B 5E 2 5 o At ) SR AT 45 BR
b o WA 2 WA R B

significant interest-bearing assets other than &R B A2 T I ) A A
bank balances as disclosed in Note 25. The b2 S SNSRI ES
Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates W) JEL By Ak A M RE3 245 R 2
is mainly attributable to its bank borrowings AT R o PP H AR B
as disclosed in Note 32. Bank borrowings SRAT S Al A A T R 32 B 4 U
at variable rates expose the Group to cash A AR B o AR SR Y R TS

flow interest-rate risk. The Group’s policy
is to obtain the most favorable interest rates
available.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@

Financial risks (Continued)

(i)

(iff)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk.

At 31 March 2025, if interest rates of bank
borrowings at variable rates had been 50 basis
points (2024: 50 basis points) higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, loss (2024:
profit) before income taxes would have been
HK$1.209 million (2024: HK$1.170 million)
higher/lower (2024: lower/higher), mainly as a
result of higher/lower interest expense.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties arises from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets
(mainly include deposits with banks, trade and
other receivables and consideration receivable)
as disclosed in the consolidated balance sheet.

The table below shows the credit quality and
the maximum exposure to credit risk based
on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or
effort, and year-end staging classification at the
end of reporting date. The amounts presented
are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

6.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F
-

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBERERGE)
(@ Financial risks (Continued) (@) Br¥EEpAE)
(iii)  Credit risk (Continued) (iii) 17 B (4E)
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 EH
FEFR 2HRAEEFR
Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-[RE ERE EE LA Hy

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR AR AR BT AR

2025 20255

Trade receivables (note a) FEQRR R (et @) - - - 87,124 87,124

Financial assets included in -~ A4 #4: e HA

deposits and other FENUR Y I
receivables (note b) (BH3E b) 52,792 - - - 52,792
Consideration receivable FEd 305,534 - - - 305,534
Cashand cash equivalents B4 RBIAS(EH) 83,339 - - - 83,339
441,665 - - 87,124 528,789

2024 20244

Trade receivables (note a) RECR 3K (E3E ) - - - 92,255 92,255

Financial assets included in @154 kIt

deposits and other FEARFR S
receivables (note b) B (HE3E b) 60,829 - - - 60,829
Consideration receivable REd A 341,686 - - - 341,686
Cash and cash equivalents Re LB &% Y 67,711 - - - 67,711
470,226 - - 92,255 562,481

Note: B

(@ The Group applies the simplified approach for (@) A< S R AL 77 ST A E
impairment of trade receivables, information WS IR R BN (B > AR 6
based on the provision matrix is disclosed in T Bl 1Y) L B R A
Note 24. Hb5E24 -

(b) The credit quality of the financial assets (b) il 3,55 E i 4 T At JE Ui IR
included in deposits and other receivables are I o 755 A NI e ) L
considered to be “normal” when they are not 90 RV R % A A E
past due and there is no information indicating 15 55 R B B DU R AR K
that the financial assets had a significant B B R E 2 AR
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. B IEE] -

99 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MEEMBER A
(@ Financial risks (Continued) (@ BAFERE (A
(iv)  Liquidity risk (iv) mE &L
Individual operating entities within the Group 7 AR T TR D % {1 A T B R
are responsible for their own cash management, HFEHBBEEMR > GEEENE
including the raising of loans to cover expected AW 2 BT oK - H
cash demands, subject to approval by the R A 7 T TELE I 4 R KT
Directors of the Company when the borrowing I ZHACA m S HEUE
exceed certain predetermined level of authority.
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor A B B 2 BOUR 7y € W1 B 2% B A
current and expected liquidity requirements Lo B 2 ) S L
and its compliance with any lending covenants AT B R B ) B SF DL > DA
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of i DR A B2 ) A 4 2 00 B < o A
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the DA A 4 T 3 = 0 2 Wt )
short and longer term. HRWE o
The maturity analysis based on contractual A £ ) B B 5 B AR R AT BLAY
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s Bl R w0 2 B 43
financial liabilities is as follows: I
Repayable on Between Between
demand/ 1and2 2and 5 Over
within 1 year years years 5 years
EZRER/
14T 1£26R 2E5ER SENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R R IO R
As at 31 March 2025 R2025%3A318
Bank borrowing (note) RATEF D) 258,459 - - -
Lease liabilities HEAE 53,985 27,142 8,067 -
Trade and other payables B9 BB AR 113,372 - - -
425,816 27,142 8,067 .
As at 31 March 2024 202443 A31H
Bank borrowing (note) BITER (D 251,432 - - -
Lease liabilities it 68,469 38,941 13,849 -
Trade and other payables B RAM IR 115,698 - - -
435,599 38,941 13,849 -

OB () A RA TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBRRER )
(@ Financial risks (Continued) (@ BAFEREE (A
(iv)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) BB E R ()
Note: BFGE -
Certain bank borrowings contain a repayment on A TR A SR DR R
demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s T SRAT R AT AL o MR LR
sole discretion. Taking into account the Group’s A 15 R R R BLER AT 1Y = 0T B
consolidated balance sheet, the directors do not 1% BRI AR RATE T
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise R RESEOR BV AR S AR R
their discretionary rights to demand immediate SE MR F AR RL E 8RAT B o
repayment. The directors believe that such bank
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.
For the purpose of managing liquidity risk, the R B R O T - AR
management of the Group reviews the expected cash L AR SR i 5K M o vl R 110 T
flow information of the Group’s bank borrowings SE R ) 2 ) AR 4 AR AT A 5K
based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in M BLE R HTIT > A RE
the bank borrowings agreements as set out in the THALHE T A AR S5 8 LB AT
table below. The amount includes interest payments o
computed using contractual rates.
Between Between
Within 1and 2 2 and 3 Over
1 year years years 3 years

£ 122565/ 2E3FR 3FLE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

AT T AT T AT T AT T
At 31 March 2025 7202538318 98,084 37,433 71,090 82,164
At 31 March 2024 *20244F3 H31H 109,933 32,712 26,059 121,198
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HBEMER
(b) Categories of financial instruments b SMIASNE
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Financial assets: SRIEE
Equity investment at fair value through #7317 {E7 4 At 4 1 i 43 51
other comprehensive income AR 5,400 5,710
Financial assets at amortised cost: DIBRES A T B 1) G R
— Consideration receivable — A 305,534 341,686
— Trade and other receivables and — & 5 T HAh B SR 3k
deposits & 139,916 153,084
— Cash and cash equivalents —Bla LBl E%EEY 83,339 67,711
534,189 568,191
Financial liabilities: c@mas:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:  LAfHESH A 518 10 4 il £ 1
— Trade and other payables — 5 5 B AR AT K 113,372 115,698
— Bank borrowings —§RATHRK 241,890 233,984
355,262 349,682
Lease liabilities HEEE 84,730 113,194
(c) Fair value (o B¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial AHE B A R B RN R <
assets and financial liabilities as disclosed in the HELEMAMZIRTERELS 2
consolidated balance sheet approximate their PNPEAA o

respective fair value.

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio and this is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings (including current and non-current
borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as ‘shareholders’ funds’ as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

6.

B EBRE R (A1)
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The gearing ratio of the Group were as follows: AL R R E SR
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Bank borrowings (Note 32) SRAT R (KT5E32) 241,890 233,984
Less: o
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 25) Bl KBl &% (EHY (f5E25) (83,339) 67,711)
Net debt TS 158,551 166,273
Shareholders’ funds JREHCE 4 913,229 906,580
Gearing ratio ERLR 17.4% 18.3%

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

@i

Fair value hierarchy

The Group’s finance department leading by the
Chief Financial Officer (the “CFQ”) is responsible
for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments. The
finance controllers report directly to the CFO. At
each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the CFO.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1:  The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on quoted
market prices at the measurement date.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is
the case for unlisted equity securities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L
-

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVERE®R
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) i) 2AFEEEE
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into A A B 2 O T T 4 A SR B
and transfers out of any of the three levels as of the GO E SR T o R R
date of the event or change in circumstances that AR o Fie 3 B SRR 22 B
caused the transfer. Disclosures of level in fair value o
hierarchy:
2025 2024
Level 3 Level 3
%38 3
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT AT T
Recurring fair value measurements  &EMAFEFE
Financial assets TREE
Equity investment at fair value through %/ F- (B2 88 A 4 T i 45
other comprehensive income BRI A3 1%
— unlisted equity securities — Ik B RA RS 25 5,400 5,710
Non-financial assets FEeMERE
Investment properties i C7/E S
— commercial building S E =X 393,100 297,800
398,500 303,510
None of the assets at fair value is included in level 1 A20254E3 H31H & 20244E3 H31
and level 2 as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, H > MESIE SEAT AT DA P-(E 52 1 B
BINIAKE K28 -
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for AR BEMENFEFREZET 2K
recurring fair value measurements during the year. 3 2 [ M AL gt o
1 05 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(i)

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values
Financial assets

The valuation of unlisted equity investment at
fair value through other comprehensive income
was determined using a market-based valuation
technique. The valuation requires the directors to
determine comparable public companies based on
industry, size, leverage and strategy, and calculates
an appropriate enterprise value of earnings before
interest, tax, depreciations and amortisation (“EV to
EBITDA”) multiple and price to earnings multiple, for
each comparable company identified. The multiple
is calculated by dividing the market capitalisation
by the profits of the comparable companies. The
multiple is then discounted for non-marketability.
The discounted multiple is applied to the profit of the
unlisted equity investment to measure the fair value
at each reporting period.

Non-financial assets

The fair value of the investment properties is arrived
at on the basis of valuation carried out by Savills
(Macau) Limited (“Savills”) independent valuer
which is not related to the Group. The Group’s
finance department reviews the valuations performed
by Savills for financial reporting purpose. These
valuation results are then reported to the Group’s
management for discussions and review in relation
to the valuation processes and the reasonableness of
valuation results.

The fair value of the investment properties was
arrived by using direct comparison method based on
market observable transactions of similar properties
in the similar conditions and locations of the subject
properties and adjusted to reflect the conditions of
the subject properties including property size and
property floor level. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is
their current use.

7.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DRVEFE@E
(iiiy Reconciliation of financial assets and non-financial (i) RFIBLATEFEZEMEERMK
assets measured at level 3 SREEYHR
Equity
investment
at fair value
through other
comprehensive Investment
income properties
BAYHE
ZERHM2ZE
Y 2 51 BR
BRHRE REME
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT WA T
At 1 April 2023 R20235481H 3,064 297,900
Revaluation surplus transfer to equity LG e e 2,646 -
Change in fair value recognised in TR AR R Y AP 52 )
income statement - (100)
At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 M2024F3A31H%2024F4A1H 5,710 297,800
Revaluation deficit transfer to equity T JEOHE Ry B A 1 (310) -
Change in fair value recognised in TR AR e TR Y AT 52 )
income statement - (24,700)
Transfer from property, plant and AYIZE - s B S
equipment - 120,000
At 31 March 2025 M2025563H31R 5,400 393,100

1 07 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(iv)

v)

Valuation processes

The Group’s finance department is responsible for the
fair value measurement of financial assets required
for financial purposes, including Level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial department reports
directly to the CFO and the audit committee (“AC").
Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the CFO and AC at least once every six
months, in line with the Group’s half-yearly reporting
periods.

The main inputs used in fair value measurement by
the Group are derived and evaluated as follows:

J price to earnings multiple

o EV to EBITDA multiple

o non-marketability discount rate
Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
Financial assets

The most significant unobservable input is EV
to EBITDA multiple of 1 (2024: 1), and non-
marketability discount rate of 35% (2024: 32%). The
lower the EV to EBITDA multiple, the lower the fair
value of the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The lower of the non-
marketability discount rate or non-controlling interest
discount, the higher the fair value of the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

As at 31 March 2025, if the non-marketability
discount rate increase/(decrease) by 1%, it would
result in (decrease)/increase in fair value by
HK$82,000 (2024: HK$82,000).

7.

DFEFE

(iv)

)

HERF

A S [ B TS R P S R B R E
SR 0 Al g T H A (E > R
3B TAH o W BATS A P B )
W HE(CFO)V M 1 % B & (AC)[E
oo Byl A AL N E S
CFOHACHE D RS H B & —K > &t
iAok B R FAE B 4 T o

A TR FOE 0 3 R
FENE A BAGAEEAY

. [EEE R

. BB

FE VLBV B R
HERABEREQFENBE
A E

B RS AL A B S 1 A 2
B (20244F © 1) R35% M FE IR
BRI (20244F 1 32%) - f22EfT
(B BORRAIG > e 20 PR35 8 L Ath 4 TG
WA 2 51 R 1) JRE 43 Y 1 P(E ARG -
I T G B R R T e M A G B
1K > $ 001985 1 A 2 1 Wi 25 51 R
) A7 45 S ) P 5

A20254E3 A31H > W IE G PERY
R ETF (AR 1% » 18 50N F
{8 (F&A%) /L T+ #E%$82,0007T (2024
A #ENE82,00000) o

B () A RA A
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unobservable

unobservable

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVERE®R
(v)  Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value (v) fRERAREREXNFENRERGE
(Continued)
Non-financial assets A
Significant Range of Relationship of

unobservable

Valuation technique(s) input(s) inputs inputs to fair value
EATUEE FUBE TAOBRBARE
fhERH BARE BAREER EATENEHE
2025 2024
Direct comparison method based on 1. Unit rate From HK$35,000 to From HK$35,000 to 1. The higher the unit rate,
market observable transactions of HK$260,000 per ~ HK$218,000 per the higher the fair value
similar properties and adjust to reflect square feet square feet
the conditions of the subject property. 2. Frontage 2. The larger the shop
frontage, the higher the
fair value
RN TBRE TS ENE 1. BAER B¥HRH PR 1. B R
Lo > M ASHREE LR A % B¥35,0000E  EH35000CE  ATEE
IR o 7##260,0007 it%218,0007C
2. ¥ 2. HTECR - A FE

1 09 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F
-

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified
as the executive directors of the Company. The executive
directors review the Group’s financial information mainly
from business nature and geographical perspectives.
From a perspective on business nature, the Group has
two reportable segments, namely watch retail and
watch wholesale trading segments. From a geographical
perspective, management mainly assesses the performance
of watch retail operations in (i) Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China and (ii) the rest of Asia.

Revenue represents sales of goods from watch retail
segment and watch wholesale trading segment. Sales
between operating segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those prevailing in arm’s length transactions.
The executive directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of adjusted
earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT”). This measurement
basis excludes unallocated income and net corporate
expenses.

Unallocated income represents dividend income from
unlisted equity investment, gain on disposal of a subsidiary
and re-measurement of deferred consideration payable in
respect of acquisition of a subsidiary in prior years. Net
corporate expenses mainly represent corporate staff costs
and provision for senior management bonus. Unallocated
assets represent property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and right-of-use assets at corporate level,
unlisted equity investment, deferred tax assets and cash
and cash equivalents. Unallocated liabilities represent
lease liabilities, other payables and accruals at corporate
level, bank borrowings, deferred tax liabilities and income
tax payable.

WA K2 EBE R

AT 2 E R RAE AR R PUATE
+ o YUAT T T B SRR S [ A
A B A SR M 2 S R o (e SEBSVEE A
HE o AERA AR E R B SR T
S SRR SE S A0 o A B A
I8 F1y 2 P A% (i) A s~ TP R B B A i)
EEVIEN SN P s

WA 5 A S R A 20 0 L SR A B
HIS 4 T B o 7 AT ] A R A A
T BAT 35 08 F IR E AT B 22 B 2 e O
AT o AT B S B M) S e A AR o
FITEBIT)) SFAZ 7 48 2 65 - sHH
LM R S B 2R 73 FE WA B SR B AT B S
o

ARIFBEMCAFE A 3 I L Tl e A 45 ) e B
WA~ B 2 R AR KA B A AR
B2 5 O R > ) R R A A A AU
W gt o 4R AT BT SO T 2 4R 1 T
W9 B TR e AR BILRE TE LB - R
G T PR 2 5 4 I R R W~ B Rk
i~ BEEWE R E - JF BT
T BUE - IR SER T DA R B e B S
EY) » AR 9 B U 45 48 B T 9 FEL B
B AR FOR SR ~ RATH
A RIEBLIA B R EAT TR -

B () A RA A
2025 4FAFH)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDIER )
For the year ended 31 March 2025 BZE2025F3A318LFE
Watch retail
EHRTE
Hong Kong,

Macau and Watch

Mainland Restof  wholesale
China Asia trading Total

BAR M Ei-£7d
B KR HepE B K Bt

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEffr AWt BRfr BEfx

Revenues from contracts with ERMEREERE 15558

customers within the scope AHEF SRS

of HKFRS 15

— Gross segment — kAR 225,887 187,119 342,979 755,985

— Inter-segment — 43 FIH] - - (140,770)  (140,770)
Sales to external customers HETIMRER 225,887 187,119 202,209 615,215
Timing of revenue recognition LN AT

— Ata point in time — Ji {1 R ] S g 225,887 187,119 202,209 615,215
Segment results DEREELE (57,484) (8,219) 22,263 (43,440)
Unallocated income A B A 1,593
Net corporate expenses S AT B 3 (38,636)
Finance costs B AR (22,666)
Loss before tax MRBi AT B 18 (103,149)
Income tax expense P Bt s (3,639)
Loss for the year FEBER (106,788)

1 1 1 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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FREMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L
-

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDEER )
For the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued) BZE2025F3A318 LEE (#)
Watch retail
EHZE
Hong Kong,
Macau and Watch
Mainland Rest of wholesale
China Asia trading  Unallocated Total
MK EEY | B
B KB Hipth B HBEL AAE a5t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEffr B ERfr  BRfr  BRfx

Addition of non-current assets: HEIEREEE

~ property, plant and equipment = #13 ~ B2 KM (3,003) (4,467) (702) (29) (8,201)

~ right-of-use assets o diiliAee (22,768) (22,432) (257) - (45,457)
Depreciation: fr -

— property, plant and equipment  —4¥3 - #25 Rakfi (4,492) (6,038) (1,189) (9,956) (21,675)

~ right-of-use assets — (27,339) (21,823) 4,713) - (53,874)
Impairment of: A -

— property, plant and equipment  — 43 - 3% K (1,737) (859) - - (2,596)

~ right-of-use assets — RS E (7,639) (1,191) - - (8,830)
Reversal of impairment of: AN

— trade receivables — R G IR 20 - 787 - 807

— consideration receivable — R AAE - - - 650 650
Fair value change of investment &M 3EA TS

properties (18,700) - - (6,000) (24,700)
Reversal of provision/(provision)  fF &I/ (7 £ #5¢

for inventories 1) 9,210 (802) 17,235 - 25,643

Other material items of income ~ HABEZEIARI L HIEH ¢
and expense:

— cost of inventories sold — B A (115,264)  (100,903) (118,192 - (334,359)
— staff costs —{B BAAISTH (73,792) (43,350) (37,977) (26,738)  (181,857)
Segment assets oy 450,766 138,024 213,660 623,677 1,426,127
Segment liabilities e (76,033) (55,477) (55,590)  (319,596)  (506,696)

B () A RA A
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8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDIER )

For the year ended 31 March 2024 BE20244E3 31 H IR

113

Watch retail
BT E
Hong Kong,
Macau and Watch
Mainland Restof  wholesale
China Asia trading Total
B R g Hi %
PERKE O HeRlE HEESER At
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
AT T T AT T AT
Revenues from contracts with BRPBEERENE15HE
customers within the scope AHEF SRS
of HKFRS 15
— Gross segment — kAR 321,506 221,506 403,231 946,243
— Inter-segment — 43 FIH] - - (178,682)  (178,682)
Sales to external customers HETIREF 321,506 221,506 224,549 767,561
Timing of revenue recognition LN AT
— Ata point in time — {1 R [ A 321,506 221,506 224,549 767,561
Segment results Ve 8,035 (10,610) 27,230 24,655
Unallocated income EHON 528,308
Net corporate expenses SEEATEOT S M (41,264)
Finance costs FABS A (29,993)
Profit before tax BRBEATER 481,706
Income tax expense RGNS (8,381)
Profit for the year FEEBA 473,325

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F
-

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDEER )
For the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued) BAE202453 431 H IR (4
Watch retail
A
Hong Kong,
Macau and Watch
Mainland Rest of wholesale
China Asia trading  Unallocated Total
MK GEN Sk
LilE N HEphlm B T KA At

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
R W W W (T

Addition of non-current assets: HIEREEE

~ property, plant and equipment = #13 ~ B2 Kk (16,399) (9,618) (3,124) (1,283) (30,424)

~ right-of-use assets —{iE R (60,232) (26,628) (2,026) - (88,886)
Depreciation: {r -

— property, plant and equipment  —4¥7% + B Kk fE (5,445) (5,206) (738) (10,648) (22,037)

~ right-of-use assets — (32,488) (25,253) (4,346) - (62,087)
Impairment of: A -

~ property, plant and equipment  —#3 » B8 Kk fi (3,674) (1,369) - (1,689) (6,732)

— intangible assets — I - - - (1,083) (1,083)

~ right-of-use assets — i ARG E (13,167) (4,889) - - (18,056)

— trade receivables — LB 5 Ik (265) - (945) - (1,210)

— consideration receivable — R IE - - - (5,203) (5,203)
Fair value change of investment  Bt&W3/A T-(H%

properties (400) - - 300 (100)
Reversal of provision/(provision) Bt il [t/

for inventories (Fr A ) 13,985 (139) 7,075 - 20,921
Other material items of income and EABEE Y AL HIAR

expense:

— cost of inventories sold —hEFENA (142,063)  (117,159)  (122,666) - (381,889)

— staff costs —fE BARHI S (76,443) (47,590) (39,966) (19,894)  (183,893)
Segment assets I B 402,059 138,716 227,099 660,751 1,428,625
Segment liabilities rivE R (104,248) (55,106) (60,433)  (296,553)  (516,340)

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L
-

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARZEHER )
Geographical information b & B
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and segment results by 223t 5 3 A 4R SO B o B SEARAN T

geographical area are as follows:

Revenue Segment results
LON 7 EBRAR
2025 2024 2025 2024

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BWffr BT

Hong Kong, Macau and Arus ~ W R B
Mainland China 309,403 423,092 (46,199) 21,992
The rest of Asia HE N LA b [ 303,857 343,670 7,333 1,877
Europe TR 1,955 799 (4,574) 786
615,215 767,561 (43,440) 24,655
An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other e b [ 40 BT 42 [ IR B S R A AR
than equity investment at fair value through other H A4 TR Ui 25 1 B Y B 5 3 - IR SE R TH
comprehensive income, deferred tax assets, consideration G MENCRAE - RN 5 R % TR
receivables, trade receivables and refundable deposits) by AN I
geographical area is as follows:
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China s ~ [ S Hh g K 557,589 504,304
The rest of Asia Y A 3 [ 77,247 78,566
Europe N 37,638 37,283
672,474 620,153
The revenue information above is based on the locations of BB R T AR % BT A b A o
the customers.
These were no revenue transactions with a single external RN AR G AN P A R
customer which amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s AL EATIT0%B A | (20244F : ) ©

revenue during the year (2024: Nil).

1 1 5 STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2025



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDEER )
Geographical information (Continued) HEER )
Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities e BRI RN A A TR B B HERBIRA -

at the beginning of the reporting period:

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
b 3 AT
Sales of watches B B Bk 892 1,345
Performance obligations BHET
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery JB 4 EAT A AT Y R R AP R
of the goods and payment is mainly on cash and credit HAemERREE s B EER > H
card settlement, except for wholesale customers, where A AHE IS SR A 2 - 82025483 31
payment is due within credit period from delivery. As at H (7R85 8 40 54T G R 334 R 2 B
31 March 2025, the remaining performance obligations I TE R B —AE L R & 41
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are part of contracts — I s KRR U BTSRRI 1 598
that have an original expected duration of one year or less, WERL 7k > W4 254 BRI A8 55 (5 HE o
the transaction price allocated to which is not presented
according to practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
9. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS 9. Hib(EE) Wik
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
bl 3 AT
Exchange losses BEE 52 5 15 (164) (12,128)
Fair value changes of investment BEW N T T)
properties (24,700) (100)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of: A Oks18) s
— property, plant and equipment — W - W S (3,392) 122
— a subsidiary (Note 33(c)) — B A (B E(33(c) - 509,487
Gain on termination of leases LB S At 606 70
Re-measurement of deferred consideration #7stiE 1E REAT U CF BRI 1L 4R
payable in respect of acquisition of a JE WS RSS2 7)) (FRFEE(31(e)
subsidiary in prior years (Note 31(e)) - 17,340
(27,650) 514,791

B () A RA A
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FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L

10.

11.

OTHER INCOME 10. EHfplrA
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T Fioki K s
Building management fee income MEFE A LA 2,580 2,580
Interest income FEMA 17,067 1,589
Rental income TR A 5,889 5,671
Dividend income B A 1,593 1,481
Rent concessions R 141 124
Shared service income LR YA 6,462 15,316
Government subsidies R A Bl 1,049 118
Sundries T 996 1,986
35,777 28,865

FINANCE COSTS 1. BHRE
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T

Interest on: FILE

— bank borrowings —SRATEEEK 16,298 21,507
— lease liabilities —HEAME 6,368 8,486
22,666 29,993

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2025




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

12.

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax has been derived

12. BRBIBT(EE),SBF

AL BRBLRT (B8 AT AR G

after debiting or (crediting) the following items in the AN ERailaa R P LN IERE -
consolidated income statement.
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Auditor’s remuneration: BT -
— audit services — IR 2,648 2,204
— non-audit services — IR 415 530
Cost of inventories sold and raw A7 & A B M EHE AR
materials consumed 334,359 381,888
Depreciation of: Ires -
— property, plant and equipment —Wy3E - R Kt (BFE17)
(Note 17) 21,675 22,037
— right-of-use assets (Note 19) — AR E (FE19) 53,874 62,087
Employee benefit expenses (Note 13) i BRI S (B 5E13) 181,857 183,893
Fair value changes of investment PG N TESEE) (HEE18)
properties (Note 18) 24,700 100
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment — (E{E I [H#) I EIEL -
loss of:
— property, plant and equipment — W3 ~ HEAS K (M E17)
(Note 17) 2,596 6,732
— right-of-use assets (Note 19) — i I REE E (FfE19) 8,830 18,056
— intangible assets (Note 20) — I G E (B 5E20) - 1,083
— consideration receivable (Note 22) — BN (M 5E22) (650) 5,203
— trade receivables (Note 24(b)) — SRR B Bk (Wi R 24(b) (807) 1,210
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE - B Kt
plant and equipment (st i 3,392 (122)
Gain on termination of leases KIFHE S & (606) (70)
Lease rental in respect of land and B 1 b, S A
buildings B B A
— short-term lease payments — BB TR 22,791 26,388
— variable lease payments — [ B A K 2,430 5,260
— rent concession (Note 10) — 4% (fEE10) (141) (124)
Reversal of provision for inventories B A I (R E23)
(Note 23) (25,643) (20,921)

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

13.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES EEEFIZH
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T WA
Salaries and allowances M SRR 159,208 167,944

Pension contributions less forfeiture BARE UK bR EsE A

utilised (note a) WHER) (Bt sEa) 13,559 13,322
Others HoAh 9,090 2,627
181,857 183,893

(@)

Pensions-defined contribution plans

The Group operates a retirement scheme under
Occupation Retirement Scheme Ordinance (“ORSO
scheme”) up to 30 November 2000 for employees in
Hong Kong. With effect from 1 December 2000, a
MPF scheme is set up which is available to eligible
employees of the Group, including executive
directors of the Company. No further employees and
contributions have been added to the ORSO scheme
after the set up of MPF scheme. Contributions to
the MPF scheme by the Group and employees are
calculated at rates specified in the rules of the MPF
scheme. The assets of the MPF scheme and ORSO
scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.

Meanwhile, relevant employees of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong contribute to the local pension
schemes, contributions to the local pension schemes
are calculated at rates specified in the rules of the
local pension schemes. The assets of the pension
scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, forfeited
contributions totaling HK$1.470 million (2024:
HK$1.424 million) arising from employees
leaving the ORSO scheme, were utilised to offset
contributions during the year.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2025
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L
-

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 13. BERAXZH @
(b)  Five highest paid individuals b HEEUESHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were AR FE AL [ 4 B N L
the highest in the Group for the year include two W% (20244F : W) #H - HHEE
directors (2024: two directors) whose emoluments 155 ELRA BT RE 140 Hp s e o A4 A JE
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 14. The 7 B i B =44 (20244F - =
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2024: Z)NE 2T -
three) highest paid individuals during the year are as
follows:
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T AT
Basic salaries, allowances and A A B EY R
benefits in kind 3,902 3,899
Performance bonuses RIUEAL 1,990 5,471
Contributions to pension plans ELY e i DRE 177 177
6,069 9,547
The emoluments fell within the following bands: P NI N NG o N
Number of individuals
AE
2025 2024
Emolument bands (in HK dollars) HEAR A s H)
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T E#H1,500,0007C - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 T E ##2,000,0007C 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 #%2,000,001 78 £ #%2,500,00070 2 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T E ##3,000,0007C - 1
Over HK$3,000,000 #3,000,0007C LA L - 2
3 3

B () A RA A
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FREMBMRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L
-

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14. ESEANRER
(@ Directors’ emoluments @ EE#E
The remuneration of every director of the Company is AR AR EEM T

121

set out below:

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of  person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking:
KTIEMRLRCHESIESRUEN

Remunerations

paid or payable

Basic salaries,  Contributions in respect of

allowances,and ~ toretirement  Discretionary  accepting office
Name Fee  benefitsinkind benefit schemes bonus as director Total

BSOS

Exge 2% e FER S
4 g RENMR fRaera B4 EERUME a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B AR AR Lo AR

For the year ended 31 March 2025~ EIZ2025%3A31R 5%
Joseph C. C. Wong (i HAI 100 2,400 4 7 - kil
Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas (i HIiK(i) 80 - 3 466 - 549
Liao Ching Mei (i) ] 80 1,543 64 71 - 2,058
Lai Kai Ming, Ricky LU 135 - - - - 135
Chan Cheuk Pan (vl i 8 - - - - 8
Lai Chun Yu (vii BRF il 83 - - - - 83
Ho ChiKin Jeff (v &) 5 - - - - 3
Cheung Ho Ling, Honnus (v R 53 - - - - 53
067 3,943 116 1,009 - 5735
Forthe year ended 31 March 2024 EE2024 583 /131 g

Joseph C. C. Wong i ) 100 1159 5 - - 1312
Surivan Joshua Kanjanapas (i) BB - - - 407 - 407
Liao Ching Mei i) Bt 2 467 20 147 - 662
Kwan Chi Kin, Wallace (i) B () 5 1,078 4 1,760 - 2,934
Ho Chi Kin,Jff 1) EC 135 - - - - 135
Lai Kai Ming, Ricky &0 135 - - - - 135
Cheung Ho Ling, Honnus (v RilAi) 135 - - - - 13
585 2,704 17 2314 - 5720

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

14.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong is also the chief executive
officer of the Group.

Mr. Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas was re-designated
from a non-executive director to an executive
director on 25 April 2024.

Ms. Liao Ching Mei has been appointed as executive
director and chief financial officer of the Group on
24 November 2023.

Mr. Kwan Chi Kin, Wallace has resigned as executive
director and chief financial officer of the Group on
24 November 2023.

Mr. Ho Chi Kin, Jeff has retired by rotation as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
upon the expiry of his term of office on 20 August
2024.

Ms. Cheung Ho Ling, Honnus has retired by rotation
as an independent non-executive director of the
Company upon the expiry of her term of office on 20
August 2024.

Mr. Chan Cheuk Pan has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
on 20 August 2024.

Mr. Lai Chun Yu has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
on 20 August 2024.

During the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March
2024, none of the directors waived their emoluments,
except for Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas waived his
basic salary for the year ended 31 March 2025 and
Mr. Joseph C.C. Wong waived a portion of his salary
of HK$579,267 for the year ended 31 March 2024.

14.

EEEN R ERS )

(@

BEEME D

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

BRI ST IR AL AT ECRRA -

G R SGAE R 20244E4 A 25 H H 9k
YATEH T BPITES -

B iR 20234511 H24 H R
AT B A T o R R I S A -

BH A B SE AR 82023 4F11 A 24 H BT
AT S T AT A -

Al B S AR AT W AR B8 20244F
8 H 20 H i (BT AA R MBS FE 3L
TH#E -

A By AT AR B Y 202448
820 H i (1B AT AN 7 57 FE 3
TH#ES -

Bl A S A iR 2024 4E8 H 20 H 2%
(LB AN IS FE AT -

BRI E R 20244E8 20 H 2
(R AN A1 FE AT T -

B ZE20254E3 H31H K%20244E3 H31H 1k
FERE > MEAEAT 0] 2 A RN A o BROE ER K
oA 20254E3 A 31 H IE A i R
A 4 ARG e A R B 2202443 H
31 H IR B A 4y 3 & W 1 579,267

I ©

B () A RA A
2025 4FAFH)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L

14.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(b)

(o)

(d

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2024: Nil).

Consideration provided to receivable by third
parties for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for
making available directors’ services (2024: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate and connected entities

During the year ended 31 March 2025, there are no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and controlled entities with such directors (2024:
Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Except as disclosed in Note 35, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2025

14.

EEENRERS )

(b)

(9]

(d

(e)

EERABENREERER

AR WA R IR AT
BRI S BEREAR A1) (20244F M) -

RENEERBEAF=SXN2RE
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REBERREEAZEN EER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L

15.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE 15, FISBix i
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Current income tax A HARLIA
— Hong Kong profits tax — H AR 818 3,923
— Overseas profits tax R AV I 2,674 2,317
— (Over)/under provision in prior years — WA () ) (715) 1,731
2,777 7,971
Deferred tax (Note 28) HESERLIA (i 5E28) 862 410
3,639 8,381
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2025 is 2025iﬁfﬁ%iﬁﬁ%ﬁé)ﬁ*ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ
calculated at 16.5% (2024: 16.5%) of the estimated }'ﬁf*;{;g]6.50/0(2024£|5‘: 16:5%) QRO
assessable profits for the year. Taxation on overseas ﬂ%ﬁ)&ﬁ%ﬁzWﬁ#%ﬁ%ﬂmﬂﬁ%z’g%
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable P80 S 1 18 I B T 55
profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to (loss)/ $®ﬂ&k%ﬁﬁ%§ﬁ@@?ﬁiﬂﬁj%%%
profit before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in Efﬁ,ﬁi@)ﬂ I i 7 L At 55 1 %Eﬂ%*ﬁ il
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are (545)  tai ML B P FBE e S B
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates are as AR SR

follows:

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L

15.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 15. FifSBisc i (4d)
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
(Loss)/profit before tax KB AT (kste) e A (103,149) 481,706
Tax at the statutory tax rates of 16.5% B ERLH16.5% (20244 © 16.5%)

(2024: 16.5%) AR EIBLIA (17,020) 79,481
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries P} &2 7] AS 7] B 2 ) 5 228 (3,962) (74,579)
Tax effect arising from: BB AR

— Non-taxable income — A B URA (3,547) (17,269)

— Non-deductible expenses — RAT B BH 5 8,608 8,162

— Recognition of temporary differences — FRERSAEAF R DR R A R

not previously recognised FH 1,305 1,721

— Utilisation of previously unrecognised ~ —fiff FHTE4F A MERR 1B TH 5 18

tax losses (377) (533)

— Tax losses not recognised — RHERR OB R 1R 19,385 9,652

— Tax reduction — BB A (6) 9

- Others — HAt (32) 24

— (Oven)/under provision in prior years —IBIEAERE R Gl Z) ) (715) 1,731
Income tax expense Jr SR ST 3,639 8,381

1 25 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L

16. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. BR (&8 B
Basic Ha
Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing BIHEA (F518) BRI ASE AR 2 ) HE 45 55
the Group’s (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of HNEEAEE (B518) R FIRE DL 384T
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary fiiliialik RSl IR =

shares in issue during the year.

2025 2024

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders — A<23 At A AEMS (B518)

of the Company (HK$’000) i A (B ¥ AT 7T) (106,999) 473,151
Weighted average number of ordinary E 37 4 SR T- 1

shares in issue (thousands) (AT BERT) 1,040,900 1,046,474
Basic (loss)/earnings per share attributable </ w4 i 547 AMEAS 55 %

to the equity holders of the Company B (18) /B A

(HK cents) (Al (10.28) 45.21
Diluted e
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended 31 BE2025%3 H31H [20244£3 31 H IE4E
March 2025 and 31 March 2024 are the same as the FE o IR (RS R) 28 ) < B SRS AR
basic (loss)/earnings per share amounts as there were no (B48)  Z R S REARTR] > 81 25 7 v 11 4 2 Y
potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issues during two Nf7 A PR A R A
years.

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L

17.

127

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W% MERRKRE
Freehold, Equipment,
leasehold leasehold
land and improvements
buildings and others Total
MEER
tiHE BB EE
tHRET ERARREM 0
HK$’000 HK$/000 HK$/000
BT BT BEAT
Cost A
At April 2023 #20234E4H1H 263,360 235,473 498,833
Additions wE - 30,424 30,424
Disposals/written off HEE _ (16,182) (16,182)
Exchange realignment e 545 4 (3,621) (4,088) (7,709)
At31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 20244£3 731 H %20244F4H 1H 259,739 245,627 505,366
Additions RE - 8,201 8,201
Disposals/written off 8 (2,229) (59,204) (61,433)
Revaluation upon transfer [LEXis- v/ E A€
to investment properties 117,037 - 117,037
Transfer to investment properties [t e~/ (120,000) _ (120,000)
Exchange realignment I 362 4 3,256 2,461 5,717
At 31 March 2025 R2025%3A318 257,803 197,085 454,888
Accumulated depreciation and EHERRE
impairment losses
AtT April 2023 #20234E4H1H 89,215 225,935 315,150
Charge for the year AT 10,930 11,107 22,037
Disposals/written off e iR _ (16,153) (16,153)
Impairment loss (Note a) WA (Hrka) - 6,732 6,732
Exchange realignment HE 31 2 % (1,793) (3,734) (5,527)
At31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 120244E3 H31H %20244F4H1H 98,352 223,887 322,239
Charge for the year AT 10,959 10,716 21,675
Disposals/written off e (2,229) (55,802) (58,031)
Impairment loss (Note a) WU (feta) _ 2,596 2,596
Exchange realignment I 54,2 5 1,795 1,993 3,788
At 31 March 2025 R2025F3 8318 108,877 183,390 292,267
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 March 2025 72025%3A318 148,926 13,695 162,621
At31 March 2024 A20244E3 431 H 161,387 21,740 183,127

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Note:

(a)

As at 31 March 2025, carrying amounts of retail stores
assets represent property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of approximately HK$132.805 million (2024:
HK$152.815 million) and HK$61.032 million (2024:
HK$82.170 million) respectively.

The Group regards its individual retail stores as separately
identifiable CGUs and the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs is determined with reference to their value-in-use.
Management carried out an impairment assessment for the
retail stores assets, including property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, which exhibited an impairment
indicator. Management performed impairment assessment
for under-performing retail stores, such as stores making a
loss and early closure of stores before the lease term. The
carrying amount of the retail stores assets is written down
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The
estimates of the recoverable amount of retail stores assets
were based on value-in-use calculations using discounted
cash flow projections based on the forecasts approved by
management covering the remaining tenure of the lease,
with 14% (2024: 14%) discount rate.

Due to a slowdown in the watch retailing operations, the
Group has revised its value-in-use of those retail stores
that exhibited impairment indicator. As a result, during the
year ended 31 March 2025, impairment of property, plant
and equipment of approximately HK$2.596 million (2024:
HK$6.732 million) and impairment of right-of-use assets
of approximately HK$8.830 million (2024: HK$18.056
million) were made as their carrying values are not expected
to be fully recoverable. Impairment loss was included
in other operating expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

Key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for
the recoverable amount as follow:

. Revenue: based on estimated sales with reference to
recent average yearly performance in all regions.

. Running cost: based on the estimated change related
to the Group’s cost saving plan and measures.

As at 31 March 2025, the carrying amount of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment pledged as security for
the Group’s bank borrowings (Note 32) amounted to
HK$123.347 million (2024: HK$136.014 million).

17.

I - MR RRE D)

U

(a)

202543431 H > EEEHMKYE -
s B Al B i ) RE Y 7 Y B T L 43
A s 132.80510 B0 (20244 & i
#152.81540 #J0) ks 61.03 210 85T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L
-

18.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REWZE
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
At 1 April R4H1H 297,800 297,900
Transfer from property, HYZE - W
plant and equipment PG IN 120,000 -
Changes in fair value APEEH) (24,700) (100)
At 31 March W3A31H 393,100 297,800
The investment properties were revalued at the date of EEca-e/EVNSE/ERE $1¥ S YN
transfer when they were transferred from property, plant T s 3 JA R ol 98 S B3 5 AR Al (B R
and equipment, and at the end of the reporting date by B E o
independent professionally qualified valuer.
(i) Amount recognised in consolidated income (i) BEVERUZRIEINESE
statement for investment properties
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Rental income LEEA N 4,668 4,292
Direct operating expenses from properties & AEFHG AN
which generated rental income HiEE W (1,141) (389)
3,527 3,903
1 29 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L
-

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18. BEWXEGH)
(i) Lease arrangements Gy HEERH
Commitments for minimum lease payments A B B W) S B ISR AR A B R AR 5l
receivable on leases of the investment properties are IR EE34() ©

set out in Note 34(a).

The Group leases out its properties under operating ALEMTER S EE T Y
leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases AW G - FHEEE BIH1FEEe
typically run for an initial period of 1 to 6 (2024: 2 to (2024%F: 223) 4F -

3) years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as BT A E G A D ER TR A A
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are M IIRe BRSO B ARG HH
denominated in the respective functional currencies BL PR AR Z SN ERR o THE S 41
of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain AL BRI IE IR - 7EH B T R R A
residual value guarantee and/or lessees’ option to NTRERE BRI B Rz 3 -

purchase the property at the end of lease term.

iii) Pledge (i) 11
The Group’s investment properties have been ASE B BB 2E T R4S SR AT LU
pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowings HRAT Bk (FfaE32) -
(Note 32).

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L
-

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. EAREE

2025 2024

HK$/000 HK$'000

BT AT

At 1 April R4H1TH 91,312 85,668
Addition W 45,457 88,886
Termination of leases HILHESGH (8,483) (658)
Depreciation charge for the year AT (53,874) (62,087)
Impairment losses (Note 17(a)) WAE (BEE17() (8,830) (18,056)
Exchange differences e 58,75 %0 3,629 (2,441)
At 31 March A3A31H 69,211 91,312

Ll w8 A o B P R DL BB Y

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the following

131

types of assets: FE
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Land use rights -l fe I HE 135 264

Property: Wk

— office premises — A E 7,852 8,553
— retail stores — B L 61,032 82,170
Motor vehicles R 192 325
69,211 91,312

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2025




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

19.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Lease liabilities of HK$84.730 million (2024: HK$113.194
million) are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
HK$69.211 million (2024: HK$91.312 million) as at 31
March 2025. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

For both years, the Group leases various offices and retail
stores for its operations. Generally, lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 3 years but may
have extension and termination options as described
below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease for an
additional period after the end of the contract term. Where
practicable, the Group seeks to include such extension
options exercisable by the Group to provide operational
flexibility. The Group assesses at lease commencement
date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. If the Group is not reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options, the future lease payments
during the extension periods are not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities. The potential exposure to
these future lease payments is summarised below:

19.

EREEE (&)

202543 H31H » #¥84.73010 # T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

19.  RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 19. SEAREE )
Potential future lease
payments under extension
Lease liabilities options not included in lease
recognised (discounted) liabilities (undiscounted)
TRECHERETES
MR BEERTNEENRR
HERERR) HENR(RER)
2025 2024 2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT BT ok i
Office premises WAE 4,256 499 11,032 4,032
Retail stores SEEH 10,862 11,180 21,492 16,090

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, upon the
occurrence of either a significant event or a significant
change in circumstances that is within the control of the
lessee. During the year ended 31 March 2025, there has
been no such triggering event.

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in Note
33(b).

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group leased
a number of retail stores which contain variable lease
payment terms that are based on sales generated from the
retail stores and minimum annual lease payment terms
that are fixed. These payment terms are common in retail
stops in the regions where the Group operates. The amount
of rent concession recognised is disclosed in Note 10.
The amount of short-term and variable lease payments
recognised in consolidated income statement is disclosed
in Note 12.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2025
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L

20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BELEE
Technical
Know-how  Trademarks Goodwill Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WA T WA WA LA™
Cost 5%
At 1 April 2023 202344 H1H 74,895 85,372 11,401 171,668
Exchange realignment i i} - 132 - 132
At 31 March 2024 and 72024538318 K
1 April 2024 2024%4818 74,895 85,504 11,401 171,800
Exchange alignment Ve 51,26 %6 - 361 (386) (25)
At 31 March 2025 72025F3A31H 74,895 85,865 11,015 171,775
Accumulated amortisation and B R
impairment loss wE
At 1 April 2023 r20234431H 74,895 48,255 - 123,150
Impairment loss WE - - 1,083 1,083
At 31 March 2024 and R202453A318 K
1 April 2024 202444818 74,895 48,255 1,083 124,233
Impairment loss WE - - - -
At 31 March 2025 A2025%3H31H 74,895 48,255 1,083 124,233
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 March 2025 2025538310 - 37,610 9,932 47,542
At 31 March 2024 R20244F3 A31H - 37,249 10,318 47,567
Impairment assessment for technical know-how EERMARER

In 2015, in order to secure the supply of mechanical

movements in the future, the Group acquired CATENA SA,

a Swiss watch movement manufacturer, and recognised
an identified technical know-how of HK$70.816 million.
Technical know-how has been fully amortised as at 31

March 2020.

B AR B R A0 8 5k 1 (L e 5 A 4k
20154 Wi s B - 45 5% AF 7 BICATENA SA >
S T k) B BE R T A e 70,81 641 B8
JC o B E20204FE3 131 H IFAEE » %82

il 2 2 AR

OB () A RA TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment assessment for trademarks

The carrying amount of trademarks of HK$37.610 million
(2024: HK$37.249 million) represents the trademarks
of self-owned watch brands. Management assesses
annually whether the trademarks exhibit any impairment
by considering the economic benefit generated from the
trademarks. The recoverable amount is determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. This calculation uses pre-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets performed
by management covering a five-year period. Management
determined the financial budget based on past performance
and its expectations for the market development.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are
as follows:

(@  Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the five-year budget period of 2.3% (2024: 0%).

(b)  Growth rate used within the five-year budget period
of 2% (2024: negative growth rate of -5%) which was
considered reasonable with reference to subsequent
sales growth rate.

(c)  Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
of 12.5% (2024: 16%). The discount rate used
reflects specific risks related to the Group.

Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable
change in any of the above key assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of trademarks to exceed the
recoverable amount significantly.

No impairment loss on trademarks is recognised during the
year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2025
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment assessment for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified
according to business segment. The goodwill is
attributable to the watch wholesale trading operations.
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. This calculation uses pre-
tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
performed by management covering a five-year period.
Management determined the financial budgets based
on past performance and its expectations for the market
development. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rate stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are
as follows:

(@  Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the five-year budget period of 2.3% (2024: 0%).

(b)  Growth rate used within the five-year budget period
of 4% (2024: negative growth rate of -8%) which was
considered reasonable with reference to subsequent
sales growth rate.

(c)  Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
of 10.8% (2024: 16%). The discount rate used
reflects specific risks related to the Group.

No impairment loss on goodwill is recognised during the
year ended 31 March 2025. During the year ended 31
March 2024, due to a slowdown in the watch wholesale
trading operations, the Group has revised its cash flow
forecasts of the CGU. The CGU has been reduced to
its recoverable amount of HK$130.251 million, and
resulted recognition of impairment losses on goodwill of
approximately HK$1.083 million. The impairment losses
are recognised in the “Other operating expenses”.

Management believes that any adverse change in the
assumptions used in the calculation of recoverable amount
would result in further impairment losses.

20.

RILEE (%)
AR RERE

AR R S5 20 TR 20 I 2 A S T T B 1
bk e A DARNHE P SE 7 SR SR S
M5 o Bl g A Ar BALAS 1A T Wi ] < R AR 8 £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

21.

22.

137

EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

21.

BEAVEHEBEMZEWESIRNKRG R
&

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Equity investment at fair value through AR EEBHM2EKETIR
other comprehensive income MR IRE
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value JF [T 2 ] B f 45 ¥ (A T-(H) 5,400 5,710

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as the
Group considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the fair value loss
recognised in other comprehensive income amounted to
HK$310,000 (2024: fair value gain of HK$2.646 million).

Al S 3 5 T AN SR A 2
(3 HoAth T i 22 50 > ) iy A AR SR 1
R I W BB B SRS -

#E 202543 H31 H IR4EFE » R HA 2
Wi 25 2w e RR A 4 T (E W E S 4R 2 U I
310,0007C (20244 = A TEE #HE2.646
1H#T) °

CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE 22. FEWRE
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T WA
Consideration receivable JRE A 310,187 346,889
Less: impairment loss W W (4,653) (5,203)
305,534 341,686
Less: non-current portion s GBS (261,887) (298,975)
Current portion TED Y 43,647 42,711

The consideration receivable represents deferred
consideration payments arising from disposal of a
subsidiary (Note 33(c)). As at 31 March 2025, the
remaining consideration receivable of approximately
HK$310.187 million (2024: HK$346.889 million) are
collectable at approximately HK$44.312 million (2024:
HK$43.361 million) annually from 2026 to 2028 (2024:
2025 to 2028) and a final consideration payment of
approximately HK$177.251 million (2024: HK$173.445
million) in 2029.

The consideration receivable is denominated in Swiss
francs that bearing interest at a rate of 3.5% (2024: 4.75%)
per annum.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L

23. INVENTORIES 23. &
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT biokicx i
Raw materials J AT R 138,335 169,350
Work-in-progress e 20,560 8,655
Finished goods R 269,033 307,596
427,928 485,601
Less: provision for inventories W AF T (220,274) (259,350)
207,654 226,251
Because of high consumption on inventories where H 7S LA R4 O RHE A B HHE 19 47 B S
allowance have been provided in prior years, as a result, B PR (R DR AR B O R B0 A B
allowance made in prior years against the inventories s H525.64314 # 7T (20244F - #%520.921
of HK$25.643 million (2024: HK$20.921 million) was & o) -
reversed.
The cost of inventories sold recognised as expense and R ZE20254F3 31 H ILFE > B MRS
included in cost of sales amounted to HK$334.359 million S I TN B AR A Y A B A 2 s
during the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: HK$381.888 334.3591H 50 (20244F : #15381.8881AH
million). Jo) °
24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. B RHEAMEBEWRR
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T WA
Trade receivables, gross EWCE 5 Wk > K 87,548 93,480
Less: impairment loss (note (b)) B BAER (R (b)) (424) (1,225)
87,124 92,255
Other receivables HoAth FE i B 3k 13,272 12,813
Deposits i 39,520 48,016
Prepayments TR 6,205 7,895
146,121 160,979
Less: non-current portion W FETEN TR (34,904) (34,873)
Current portion TRy 111,217 126,106

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

24.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

24.

B 5 R HE RS ()

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on 8% 55 H O 43 1T A B UL RE ) TR AR 18
invoice date is as follows: B
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
0 - 60 days 0-60K 25,569 47,804
Over 60 days 60 KL 61,979 45,676
87,548 93,480
Note: FFaE -
(@  The Group engages designated import and export agents (@)  AAEFIAM R E R AR o s
for the importation of products from the subsidiaries in B2 R (14 7 kA A S A B A D o IRE
Hong Kong to the subsidiaries in the Mainland China. The Do A 4 1 A Y 55 0 ) 45 1 )
balances due from and due to the import and export agents BRAH > EM BRI ERSE - BE
are settled on a back-to-back basis, and such balances are 202543 H31H » A48 B E i I 3 S e A5
repayable on demand. The Group’s trade receivables and HR R, 9 B MR A A 10 AL 455 B
trade payables include balances due from and due to the 37,0001 87T (20244F - #1534.968
import and export agents of HK$37.000 million as at 31 {H# ) ©
March 2025 (2024: HK$34.968 million).
Other than the balances due from the import and export I T AT B B A A Y AR 5 BR AL - AR
agents, the Group allows an average credit period of 60 Bl T HBICE 5 SR h 8 52 B Ry
days (2024: 60 days) from the invoice date to its trade 60K (20244 : 60K) A5 EHA -
receivables.
(b)  An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date (b)  AREE T A At A7 Al T 488 A0 R AT Dok

by using a provision matrix to measure ECL. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, and customer type). The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value
of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off when the
counter party is in severe financial difficulty and there is
no realistic prospect of recovering e.g. under liquidation or
entered into bankruptcy.

Meanwhile, the Group applied general approach to provide
for ECLs for financial assets included in deposits and
other receivables under HKFRS 9. The Group considers
the historical loss rate and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data in calculating the expected credit loss
rate. As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group estimated
the expected loss rate for financial assets included in
deposits and other receivables is insignificant.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L
-

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24, B RHEMEBEWRRGE)
Note: (Continued) A =
(b)  Movements on the loss allowance for impairment of trade (b)  MENE S IR B A B T

receivables are as follows:

2025 2024
HK$/000 HK$'000
BT AT T
At 1 April w4aH1H 1,225 21
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment loss (BB B 01 18) T s (807) 1,210
Exchange realignment [ffE b, 25 %0 6 (6)
At 31 March H3H31H 424 1,225
(c)  Trade and other receivables included amounts due from (c)  E Gy B H Al R g AR K B 45 R A B e
related companies of HK$6.600 million (2024: HK$6.518 fY T T 1 6.6001H 5 TT (2024 4F : M
million). 6.518{A & IL) °
(d)  The carrying amount of trade and other receivables are () B Y KA R K R T (E 2 5
denominated in the following currencies: LU
2025 2024
HK$/000 HK$'000
BT AT
Hong Kong dollars i 47,264 55,923
Renminbi NG 31,828 32,362
Malaysian ringgit FEA PG REA 24,785 24,038
Swiss francs Fi L B B 22,606 20,102
Singapore dollars G DIIE T 13,716 13,059
Thai bahts ek 2,154 2,464
Others HoAtb 3,768 13,031
146,121 160,979
()  As at 31 March 2025, included in trade receivables are ()  #E20254E3A31H - FEUWE Sk %8
gross amount of approximately HK$17.700 million (2024: oo AR 7.7001A BT (20244 N
HK$17.320 million) that bearing interest at a rate of 3.5% 17.320fE#70) > PAMERIR3.5% (20244F :
(2024: 4.75%) per annum. 4.75%)FHE ©

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L
-

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. HERRELEEY
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Cash at banks HATH 4 81,355 66,895
Cash on hand FoHl 4 1,984 816
83,339 67,711

Note: BF5E -

(@) The above balances mainly represent cash at banks. Bank (@)  FREREE TR EATEIA o SATAEREREH
balances are deposited in banks with sound credit ratings to TSAERORME T RT AL R B 8RAT 473K > LR
mitigate the credit risk. REREY

(b)  The conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies and (b) 9 AR S A0 o IR M N RS REE o o [
remittance of Renminbi out of the PRC is subject to the rules K I 2 2 v B R A A 14 47 B A 2 )
and regulations of exchange controls promulgated by the TRAIKIBR -

PRC government.

() The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the () BleKRBESEEDHEWEIT
following currencies:

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT IC

Singapore dollars HomyE e 30,415 25,925
Hong Kong dollars ey 15,654 17,451
Malaysian ringgit TR 4 21,804 14,538
Thai bahts B 3,798 3,655
Renminbi NG 7,231 1,573
Swiss francs Fit 2 B 1,027 972
Others HoAty 3,410 3,597
83,339 67,711

1 41 STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2025



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

26. SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES 26. RAEREERSG
Number of
shares of Share capital  Treasury shares
Note HK$0.1 each HK$'000 HK$'000
R
0. 170 I FEFE
o5 e WA AT
Authorised: MEIRA -
At1 April 2023, 31 March 2024, #2023F4 18 ~ 2024%F
1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 3H31H ~ 2024541 1H
T202543 31 H 1,600,000,000 160,000 -
Issued and fully paid: CBIT R A -
At1 April 2023, 31 March 2024 #20234E4 A1 H
and 1 April 2024 202443 131 H 20244411 1,046,474,025 104,647 -
Share repurchased and cancelled 1 B e i 8 (a) (1,716,000) (172) -
Share repurchased as treasury shares It Il 1 B R 7 i (b) (7,839,000) - (698)
At 31 March 2025 202543 H31H 1,036,919,025 104,475 (698)

Note:

(@  From 2 August 2024 to 16 August 2024, the Company
repurchased 1,716,000 shares of the Company for a total
consideration of approximately HK$141,000 in the open
market on the Stock Exchange and subsequent cancelled
on 9 September 2024 pursuant to the general mandate
to repurchase the shares of the Company granted by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 29
August 2023 to the Board.

(b)  From 20 August 2024 to 3 September 2024, the Company
repurchased 7,839,000 shares of the Company for a total
consideration of approximately HK$698,000 in the open
market on the Stock Exchange. The shares have not been
cancelled as at 31 March 2025. The repurchase was
approved pursuant to the general mandate to repurchase
the shares of the Company granted by the shareholders at
the annual general meeting held on 20 August 2024 to the
Board.

BEGE -

(@  F20244E8H2H E20244E8H16H » HiE
AN AR 202348 H 29 H 8447 A9 B3R
AR R G B3 T g Il A w ] IR Y
— A 5 ARSI AE 2 DR T35 0 B 58 i A
HALCAT A U514, 000 7T F11,716,000/8
AN A Ay - HAZ R 2024F9H9 H T LAGE

(b)  F20244E8H20H £20244F9H3H » Hi4E
ANA AR 202448 H 20 H 8447 A9 B3R
ARG LT3 G [ AR R 1Y
— P RE 5 AR RN BT 35 AR W 52 T A
HALCAE 698,000 TC i 71 7,839,000/
AN TG o BZE20254E3H31H » %%
JBeAsS M R W B

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F
-

27. RESERVES 27. f#fe
Property,
plantand  (Accumulated
equipment losses)/
Share ~ Revaluation Echange ~ revaluation refained
premium reserve reserve reserve profifs Total

0% BER  (BHER)/
Bftaf  EBE  EXGR GREERE  RERA L
HKS 000 HKSO0D  HKS00 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
B B B M B B

AT April 203 R03%4R1H 1977 813 (62,418) 403,684 (24)651) 319,405
Proftfor the year gl - - - - 473,151 473,151
Other comprehensive income(os| for he year ERihAERE/ B - 2,646 (15,29) - 130 (12,520)
Relase of cumulativ exchange reserve upon disposal LEREHE AL - - 21897 - - 1897
At31 March 2024 0483 31 1977 3459 (55,817) 403,084 48,630 801,933
AT April 2024 R04E4 1R 1977 3459 (55,817) 403,684 448,630 801,933
Loss forthe year R - - - - (106,999) (106,999)
Other comprehensive (lossJincome for the year ERbREER) - (310 11,516 10299 28 114487
Share repurchased and cancelled Rl 31 - - - - 3
At 31 March 2025 H25538318 2,008 3,149 (44,301) 506,677 341919 809,452
Nature and purpose of reserves REZHEERAR
(i) Share premium i) ROE
Share premium represents amount paid by e 73 Vi {0 i BCSR LR T S2 A ) <
shareholders for capital injection in excess of par AT -
value.
(i)  Revaluation reserve (i) ENGH
Revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net AR 4 R R A B LA
change in the fair value of financial assets held at (BT A A 2 T A i 2 6 Y A
FVTOCI at the end of reporting date and is dealt with R FT AR - MR EE4(h)
in accordance with the accounting policy in Note W st BOR A -
4(h).
1 43 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L

27.

28.

RESERVES (Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange

differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt

with in accordance with the accounting policies set

out in Note 4(d).

(iv)  Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve

The property, plant and equipment revaluation

reserve has been set up and is dealt with in

accordance with the accounting policies adopted for

land and buildings held for own use in Note 4(e).

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities is as follows:

27.

28.

B ()
Bz HER AR )
(iii) S Gty
HEE S, ot 6 455 T A R 49 008 S S 5

B R e A 2 BE S22 o AR 9 AR %
BFaE4(d) P st R E I -

(iv) Y5~ i RN

WIS ~ WA Bt ELAS il 2 B r
R RE4(e) P 2 A A 2
o s BT BT T BOR B o

IEFERTH
RSB IH 2 SR AE R BT AT

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT

Deferred tax assets R ALl TH 5,605 6,482
Deferred tax liabilities AR SE L IH A (40,195) (26,287)
(34,590) (19,805)

The movement on the net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

position is as follows:

THRERUHE R,/ (B IR B I F

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT

At 1 April R4A1TH (19,805) (19,187)
Charged to income statement (Note 15)  #F A4 2% (Kt 5E15) (862) (410)
Charged to other comprehensive income 71 A At 2 i i 5 & (14,044) -
Exchange realignment iz i) 121 (208)
At 31 March A3A31H (34,590) (19,805)

B () A RA A
2025 4FAFH)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F
-

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 28. EEEBIR (4
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during A DR IR A T e B R B ) O 5 R
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of ARIRI BB m R i A SR AEHE ) A

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred tax assets R IEEE
Provision of Other
Depreciation  unrealised profit Other temporary
allowances in inventories provisions differences Total
HFETRER At
TEERE RNNER At ERUER &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
L v kL iv AR AR AR
At1 April 2023 120234 711H 14 4,945 1,224 781 7,001
(Charged)credited to income statement ~~ (41IFR) /G AU (136) 105 14 (359) (375)
Exchange differences AR - (145) (46) ) (234
At31 March 2024 202453 A31H 5 4905 1,192 380 6,482
At 1T April 2024 R024E4A1H 5 4,903 1,192 380 6,482
Credited(charged) to income statement ~ &F A/ (TR rdi & 18 (1,05) 205 (169) (999)
Exchange differences ERER - 73 35 13 121
At 31 March 2025 2025534318 23 3,926 1,432 224 5,605
Out of the unrecognised tax losses of HK$1,284.304 v 4 0 DA AR 5 O A B R B 2 O Tl R B IE
million (2024: HK$1,226.592 million) carried forward, an B R A A W 1,284.3041A 170 (2024
amount of HK$1,066.658 million (2024: HK$1,000.475 o H,226.592E 8 T) > Hhils
million) can be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining 1,066.6581H # T (20244F : #%1,000.475
HK$217.646 million (2024: HK$226.117 million) will il 0 AT R A5 > HERIEN217.646
expire in the following years: A ETT (20244F : #EW226.11710 8 70) A4 1E
T EU AR R
1 45 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L
-

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 28. EIEBIR (A
Deferred tax assets (Continued) BB IREE ()
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
In the first year 14 44,086 34,221
In the second year H24E 69,772 48,050
In the third year Exkes 59,594 71,319
In the fourth year A 19,912 51,917
In the fifth to tenth years inclusive S5 E 1 04F (B4R E B 4R) 24,282 20,610
217,646 226,117
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of A T AE — B IR [H] A 78 A s 1500 B g 2 =)
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have 3 FLAR W] AE 6 725 15 8 S0 1L LA 1 HC
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered B R 48 - S A 5 S AR k% 45 s 1H e
probable that taxable profits will be available against RRARIE R 7 o
which the tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred tax liabilities BEHESE
Revaluation
of property,
Depreciation plantand  Right-of-use
allowances equipment assets Total
ERE:
EEE RREER  RRREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT R AT R
At1 April 2023 2023441 1H 4,088 21,586 604 26,278
Charged/(credited) to income statement 1%/ (’EA) i % 8 (48) 75 35
Exchange differences HE 5 7% - - (26) (26)
At 31 March 2024 #20244E3 H31H 4,096 21,538 653 26,287
At 1 April 2024 #20244F4H1H 4,096 21,538 653 26,287
Credited to income statement kxR - - (136) (136)
Charged to other comprehensive income ~ #F A Aih A it 4 % - 14,044 - 14,044
At 31 March 2025 #202553A31H 4,096 35,582 517 40,195
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L
-

29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29. HES&E
2025 2024
Present Present
Minimum value Minimum value
lease of lease lease of lease
payment liabilities payment liabilities
Ri& BEHEE R RiEHE

BERE AEZERE  HEIE SUHZEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEATT BT EWT WP

Minimum lease payment due: B AR AR B8 -
— within one year — 1R 53,985 50,400 68,469 62,643
— more than one year but not exceeding ~ — 14 {H24E R
two years 27,142 26,190 38,941 36,850
— more than two years but not exceeding ~ —2F & H54F A
five years 8,067 8,140 13,849 13,701
89,194 84,730 121,259 113,194
Less: future finance charge T R S (4,464) N/A (8,065) N/A
Present value of lease liabilities HEAHEBIE 84,730 84,730 113,194 113,194
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 38 : 1218 H R 2|45 85 4%
months (shown under current liabilities) () & N 2 51) (50,400) (62,643)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 124 H #5458 &5 34,330 50,551
The lease liabilities are denominated in the following EABKEFEIT
currencies:
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT WA
Hong Kong dollars ki 39,598 61,952
Malaysian ringgit FEAR P R4 7 23,511 27,681
Singapore dollars B oo 18,122 16,984
Renminbi NGNS 2,639 4,889
Thai bahts ES 7 860 1,688
84,730 113,194

1 47 STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2025



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

30.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Hong Kong
employees that have been employed continuously for
at least five years are entitled to LSP in accordance with
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance under certain
circumstances. These circumstances include where an
employee is dismissed for reasons other than serious
misconduct or redundancy, that employee resigns at the
age of 65 or above, or the employment contract is of fixed
term and expires without renewal. The amount of LSP
payable is determined with reference to the employee’s
final salary (capped at HK$22,500) and the years of service,
reduced by the amount of any accrued benefits derived
from the Group’s contributions to MPF scheme (Note
13(a)), with an overall cap of $390,000 per employee.
Currently, the group does not have any separate funding
arrangement in place to meet its LSP obligation.

In June 2022, the Government gazetted the Amendment
Ordinance, which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits
derived from employers’ mandatory MPF contributions
to offset the LSP. The Abolition will officially take effect
on 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Separately, the
Government of the HKSAR is also expected to introduce a
subsidy scheme to assist employers for a period of 25 years
after the Transition Date on the LSP payable by employers
up to a certain amount per employee per year.

Under the Amendment Ordinance, the Group’s mandatory
MPF contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative
returns, after the Transition Date can continue to be
applied to offset the pre-Transition Date LSP obligation
but are not eligible to offset the post-Transition Date LSP
obligation. Furthermore, the LSP obligation before the
Transition Date will be grandfathered and calculated based
on the last monthly wages immediately preceding the
Transition Date and the years of service up to that date.

30.

RRERIARE

AL [ T A S IR B AT W
IREAE ] o RIEF MGG > 5T
PR B UL R > A2 R D AR ) i
BAEMESRMRE S - 25BN EER
[ AT B S s TR R DA AN 0 DR B AR
i B9 18 B ~ AF W65k Bk LA b T B AF A9 8
B s R S 40 8 R AR L T AR A R
A o A RBME SN SHES %8 R
e (LR A 22,50070) KRS 4 1)
A 0B A 4R T ) S RE A ET ) (B AR
13(a)) ik AL AT AT T Rl 25 > 218 B
SRR IR A 5 1390,0000G © HFI > ASEE
1] 7 R 5% ST AT AR S ST Al R DL B AT HR
WIS 4 BT -

R20224F6 H - BURTIBEETTHS] > BERR LA
i Eom bt A s AR R
IR G 1 2Bk o JBEBRBESI R 20254F5 H 1
H (M@ B0 ) IER AR o BN > Frisdil
A7 I [ R 7R T B e — TEUE B st 3 1 B
fii S ATE BT RIS 4 - HRE
HIE 25 W1254F > BEGL2RBRAHET
SHE IR -

RABAERT RG] - R H AL > AL
ot ] P SR A < R AT AT IE L [
A AR T S R 9 B T A = S RS <
FAL » HOR TGS A I F AR B R 0 R B
EIAL o WAL > R B BIETA R RS &
FALAF IR G > 37 2 B P IDTHT Y IR
BAF R EZEZH LR EIRE -

B () A RA A
2025 4FAFH)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F
-

30. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 30. BRIREFAE )

A LR ATHR I IS & TR B 52 8)

Movements in the present value of unfunded LSP obligation

149

in the current year were as follows: -
2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT
At 1 April w4H1H 1,803 1,150
Amounts recognised in the profit or loss: RIBZHTERHNEHE
Current service cost B IR A 358 226
Interest cost AR 65 33
Past service cost B AR - 530
Remeasurements recognised in other REMZEHRSERRNERTE
comprehensive income: o
Actuarial loss/(gains) arising from: KSR, (as) B AR -
— changes in financial assumptions — B R R A 37 (73)
- experience adjustment — KEBR AR (325) (57)
Benefit payments A A A (76) (6)
At 31 March W3H31H 1,862 1,803

The average duration of the benefit obligation at 31 March
2025 is 6.7 years (2024: 8.0 years).

Of the expenses for the year, HK$423,000 (2024:
HK$789,000) has been included in general and
administrative expenses.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination
of the LSP obligation are discount rate of 2.9% (2024:
3.7%), expected salary increase of 2.5% (2024: 3.0%) and
expected investment return on offsetable MPF accrued
benefits of 2.5% (2024: 2.5%). The sensitivity analysis
below has been determined based on reasonably possible
changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end
of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions
constant.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L
-

30. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 30. RIRBRIARE )
2025 2024
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
Increase in LSP Increase in LSP
in rates provision in rates provision
RERKS R &
BEEm/ B/
sl (Bi2) s | ()
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT
Discount rate g 0.5% (35) 0.5% (70)
Expected salary increase T 0.5% 16 0.5% 29
Investment return on offsetable TR R R SRR Y
MPF contribution BB 0.5% (21) 0.5% (66)
Decrease in the above rates by 0.5% (2024: 0.5%) would Lk R 0.5% (20244F ¢ 0.5%) 155
affect the LSP provision by approximately the same amount MR 55 < A E A R O] < BELAE D7 1) A
but in the opposite direction. diih-%-
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be Hﬂﬁ/\%jﬁﬁié“ REEAT BE > Bl R A
representative of the actual change in the LSP obligation as REAE RSZ A A B e b B )
it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur ﬁtiﬁﬂﬁi@fﬁ*ﬁT RE I A AR A= 0 AR 55
in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may BT HHREEE) o

be correlated.

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31. HEREMELRX
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Trade payables (note b) AT K (F5Eb) 56,728 55,787
Contract liabilities (note d) Mﬁ:%f% &mzd 1,814 892
Other payables (note e) FAh AT HRSK (M Ee) 15,217 15,082
Accruals fE=T# H 43,470 46,752
117,229 118,513

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

31.

Note:

(a)

(b)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 31. B RHMEMRNR G
BF5E -
Trade payables are unsecured and usually paid within 30 @ BT 5 R AT W R HERR 230
days of recognition. H RS A o
The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice (b) % EESE AT I AT 51 ) MR R i 4
date is as follows: B
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
0 - 60 days 0-60K 16,984 13,740
Over 60 days 60K LAk 39,744 42,047
56,728 55,787
Trade and other payables included amounts due to related (© B 5 P HA AT MR B 36 T A B BB 2 )k
companies of HK$216,000 (2024: HK$2.364 million). TEHEH216,0007C (20244F = #sK2.36448
#0) o
Contract liabilities include advances received from () B # B R S ARk B G A ik T ) R A

customers. The increase in balance of contract liabilities is
due to the increase in advances from customers as at year
end.

The Group has a deferred consideration payable which
represents a right to acquire the 12% equity interest of a
subsidiary of the Company, namely Catena SA (“Catena”).
The acquisition right is exercisable at the price equal to the
proportional net assets value of Catena. However, if the net
assets value is negative, the purchase price shall be set as
zero. The acquisition right is exercisable until 31 December
2035.

As at 31 March 2024, management carried out a review
on the net assets value and forecasts of future business
performance of Catena and determined that the purchase
price of 12% equity interest in Catena will be close to zero.
As a result, a reversal of deferred consideration payable
and related discounting interest of HK$17.34 million was
recognised to consolidated income statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (Note 9).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

() The trade and other payables are denominated in the

following currencies:

31. EFREMENRRE)

WERE - (4%)

() B5HRHAEIIRSE TR

2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT G
Hong Kong dollars i 42,831 49,472
Renminbi NG 34,469 28,321
Malaysian ringgit FEA PG RE A 11,968 11,106
United states dollars ESSH 10,185 8,947
Singapore dollars G DIIE O 5,836 7,812
Thai bahts ek 6,193 6,420
Swiss francs T3 R 1,572 2,913
Others HoAthy 4,175 3,522
117,229 118,513
32. BANK BORROWINGS 32. S|ITER
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Bank borrowings, secured TR K4 241,890 233,984
Note: iR
(@  The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable on demand, (@)  AEESRATE R REE - FIEE 5
and classified as current liabilities. T A o
(b)  The analysis of the repayment schedule of bank borrowings (b)  HRER K h R B A TE T T - SRAT
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out BB AT T
in the loan agreement is as follows:
2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Within one year T4ER 81,515 92,485
More than one year, but not exceeding
two years TR E24E A 26,448 22,160
More than two years, but not exceeding
five years 2R E5EN 61,918 51,480
More than five years 54E4% 72,009 67,859
241,890 233,984

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L

32.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(c)

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for the
Group’s bank borrowings are:

32.

RITER )
WEGE - ()

()

CLACT A8 SR AT DU HOR 4 B SR AT 5 20
FERTEI(E AT -

2025 2024

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT AT

Property, plant and equipment L/E R i 17 123,347 136,014
Investment properties Eita-gr/ES 18 393,100 297,800
516,447 433,814

The bank borrowings of the Group are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

As at 31 March 2025, weighted average effective interest
rate per annum for bank borrowings was 6.8% (2024: 7.5%).

The fair values of the Group’s borrowing are approximated
to their carrying amounts due to their short term nature or
carrying interest at variable rate.

Certain of the Group’s bank facilities are subject to the
fulfillment of covenants which tested periodically. Such
covenants are commonly found in lending arrangements
with financial institutions. The Group has complied with
the financial covenants of its borrowing facilities during the
years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L
-

33. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW INFORMATION 33. MRERERERME
(@) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (@ ®MEETHELNERED
Analysis of liabilities arising from financing activities ASER D BT 7 4R 5 Rl T B A Y
and the movements in liabilities arising from TR B il 3 ) BT A AR 5 B Y 70
financing activities for each of the years presented. Br o
Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings Total
HEEE BITENX #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
VAT T AT AT T
At 1 April 2023 202344 H1H 92,768 342,848 435,616
Cash flows B4 it i (65,240) (108,864) (174,104)
Non-cash flows T B 88,158 - 88,158
Exchange differences HEE 5,2 BH (2,492) - (2,492)
At 31 March 2024 R20244F3H31H 113,194 233,984 347,178
At 1 April 2024 JA2024%4H1H 113,194 233,984 347,178
Cash flows B (68,821) 7,906 (60,915)
Non-cash flows TR 36,656 - 36,656
Exchange differences [ifE 50, 25 HH 3,701 - 3,701
At 31 March 2025 2025563 H31H 84,730 241,890 326,620

B () A RA A
2025 4FAFH) 154



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L

33. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW INFORMATION 33. ZEBHEHRERMFT )

(Continued)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b)) HEZHRSHRHAEEE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for AIABERERTNAREESHE
leases comprise the following: R -
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Within operating cash flows TS B B A 31,448 40,010
Within financing cash flows A R T B B A 68,821 65,240
Represents lease rental paid O AT A 4 100,269 105,250
(c) Disposal of a subsidiary (0 HEWBAF
On 12 December 2023, a wholly owned subsidiary 202312 H12H » AAwE—HZE
of the Company (the “Seller”) entered into a share Bt Jag 2 w) (8 0 )) S Sr 5 =07
sale agreement with an independent third party (the (87 ) AT SL R 9 45 fop ek - G &
“Purchaser”) for a disposal of entire issued share 7 — MG A R 2R E TR
capital of a wholly owned subsidiary of the Seller A B A 535,103 10 & o
at an aggregate consideration of approximately W38 5 CLR20244F2 H29 H SE 1 -

HK$535.103 million. The transaction was completed
on 29 February 2024.

1 55 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L

33. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(Continued)

(9]

Disposal of a subsidiary (Continued)

The net assets disposed of and the resulting gain on

33. HZEBHEHRERMET )

(0 HEKBAR @

R B A B R R S

disposal at the date of disposal are summarised as AR A N
follows:
2024
HK$’000
AT
Trade and other receivables B 5 B FABRE ISR R 124
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KBl EY) 622
Trade and other payables 5.5 Be H A EATHR X (153)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 593
Gain on disposal HERE
Total consideration HafE 535,103
Less: professional fees W R 2 (3,126)
531,977
Net assets disposed of G THE (593)
Release of cumulative exchange reserve H B 1% A S0 (ol A e
upon disposal (21,897)
509,487
Satisfied by: XM
—cash — Bl 175,074
— consideration receivable — A 356,903
531,977

An analysis of net inflows of cash and bank balances

A Rt B S TE A SRAT 45 B S B B TR R

of the disposal is as follows: AGHIE
2024
HK$’000
AT T
Cash consideration T4 175,074
Less: cash and bank of the disposed subsidiary W IR B B SRAT A5 6 (622)
Net proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary H B B8 2 B BT A5 O 1 AR 174,452

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L
-

34. COMMITMENTS 34. &I
(@ Non-cancellable operating leases (where the Group (@ TARENEERE(NEEEAS
is the lessor) HA)
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of AT B AR T 08 SRk R A
certain land and buildings are as follows: WA e AT
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Investment properties REWH
Commitments for minimum lease payments 7 £E [8 75/~ o] B 26 A0 5
receivable in relation to non-cancellable B AR AR e AT R A <6 A
operating leases are payable as follows: BT
— Not later than one year — 14K 7,000 4,774
— Later than one year but not later than —14HEEHEEER
five years 25,655 5,875
— Later than five years —54EAR 5,808 -
38,463 10,649
Other properties Hty
Commitments for minimum lease payments 7 £ [# 75 o] Sl 85 26 F0 5
receivable in relation to non-cancellable B AR A R AR Ui 7 AL AR
subleases of operating leases are payable BRI
as follows:
— Not later than one year —14ER 1,160 710
— Later than one year but not later than — 1B E54E R
five years 483 876
1,643 1,586
(b) Non-cancellable operating leases (where the Group (b) FAHENEXREE (FEBEERE
is the lessee) HA)
The Group entered into certain short-term leases A T s A AN R G AT
for office and retail shops. As at 31 March 2025, FIATHAD - R20254F3 H31H » 345
the outstanding lease commitments relating to these WA R B AR B A R (2 A
office and retail shops are approximately HK$17.810 BRYEH W1 7.81010 85T (2024
million (2024: HK$13.994 million). A 13,994 E D)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. AEAMALIRS

As at 31 March 2025, Yee Hing Company Limited (“Yee R2025F3 H31H » FeEATFRA R ([FEHL)

Hing”) held 950,900 shares of the Company through its 78 % FL K& /A ®] Active Lights Company

subsidiary Active Lights Company Limited. 55% of the LimitedFA 42 7950,900 % By © Klayze

total issued ordinary shares of Yee Hing is held by Klayze Holdings Limited LAE /% — I (5 5T (15

Holdings Limited, which is the trustee of a discretionary fL) ZEZFEAN S B A R T8

trust (the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong is a beneficiary W2 55%ME A o FRIESEERELEZ X

of the Trust, therefore deemed to be interested in 950,900 fi N > WO AR 2y 3 A A T 2 L 2 B 4R T

shares of the Company through the Trust's interest in Yee HEH A2 F1950,900 BB 4 o

Hing.

(@) Significant transactions with related parties (@) HAEEBALTETZEARS
Apart from disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated W &5 B 5 R A 8 23 BT e 6 41
financial statements, the following is a summary 5 25 A AR [ B IR L 2 [H] i
of the significant related party transactions carried TN ERZHME - Z5 585 I A
out in the normal course of the Group’s business. B H R SETS HIEAT o BRI AR
The related parties are entities which a director H AR 2 ) o S RO 2 A
and substantial shareholder of the Company has HEH -

beneficial interests.

(i) Provision of services to related companies (i) [H B Al IR

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T WA

Building management service E SR ON( T
income (note a) 2,580 2,580
Shared service income (note b) FLE R (B5E b) 6,462 15,316
Rental income (note c) FHAe WA (Mt stc) 3,396 3,633
Royalty income (note d) FEEFRERT T B (K Ed) 301 654
Sundries AT 125 -

12,864 22,183

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@ Significant transactions with related parties

(Continued)

(i)

Provision of services to related companies
(Continued)

Note:

()

A wholly owned subsidiary of the Group
entered into a renewal agreement with
Mengiwa Property Investment Limited
(“MPIL”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
Yee Hing, for the provision of the following
services for the period from 1 April 2022 to 31
March 2025:

(i) contract administration with respect to
contracts entered into between MPIL
and third parties from time to time;

(i) property agency liaison and tenancy
management;

(iii)  management of the property manager of
Stelux House; and

(iv)  other miscellaneous administrative
services.

The fee for the provision of the above
services was agreed at HK$215,000 (2024:
HK$215,000) per calendar month during the
agreement period.

The Group provided administrative services
to related parties. Shared service income was
charged at cost basis allocated based on the
counterparties’ usage of each type of service,
taking into account factors such as headcount
and the number of stores.

The Group provided leasing services to related
parties. Rental income was charged to related
parties based on the occupied area ratio times
total actual costs incurred.

The Group provided licensing services to
related parties. Royalty income was charged
at 10% of the amount invoiced by suppliers or
vendors of the counterparties.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254-3 H31 H IL4F
-

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35. BEMALRS )

(@) Significant transactions with related parties (@) BEEBBMALETZEARRS #)

(Continued)
(i) Purchases of goods and services from related (i) 1] B A I B i RR T

parties

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT AT

Purchase of goods (note a) W £ 5 (B aEa) 11,369 15,818

Rental expenses (note b) FH4 S (fEb) 9,303 9,243

Lease management expenses (note c) FLE 2% 3% H (Ffikc) 720 420

Expenses recharged (note d) FoAt 2 ) (K 5Ed) 858 -

22,250 25,481

Note: g

(@) During the year, certain subsidiaries of the (@) TR > AL A7 T R A
Group purchased watch products from a ] ) — [H] B W > ) g L Gk
related company. EEfh
Purchases of watch products from the related o] (58 B A ) i L
company are conducted in the normal AEE ) H W ERS o S8 h) 2Rk
course of the Group’s business. The terms R A A T B2 B T
of transactions are determined and agreed E M E > T T R R 52
between the Group and the counterparty and ST
all balances due are repayable according to
trade terms.

(b) During the year, certain subsidiaries of the (b) N AL AT WE A E
Group entered into tenancy agreements iR RCN ) DN A YA £
with the following related parties for office ok - LA AW ~ JE
premises, stores, warehouses, showroom and S A BRI E Ry
car-parking spaces: i

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT

MPIL R 7,688 7,687
Other related parties oAt A B AL 1,615 1,556
9,303 9,243

(00 A related company provided lease (€ — A B w) 1) A% 4L 9 4t
management services to the Group. The fee HEFL B AR TS - *1}1*1/\ A
for the provision of such services is charged at I 5 B 2% D A T vl 0 T A
pre-determined amount during the agreement TEE OB
period.

(d)  Yee Hing and a related company provided (d) 7% B K — [ B W N ) [ A 4
administrative services to the Group. The e A O BB o 5% 5
expenses were charged at cost basis allocated 22 T AR A A A5 SIS
based on the Group's usage of each type of 0 S DL - 2 AR R R i
services. B o

B () A RA A
2025 4FAFH)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L
-

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35. BEBALIXS #H)
(b) Balances with related parties (b) EEEBEEALZENER
The balances due from/to related companies as BF 24 K31 ST 45 85 1) B WA B JRE A+F I e
disclosed in Notes 24 and 31 are unsecured, 4 ) [ B TR A AR - fp R R
interest-free and repayable on demand. The related RAEE - BN L RIEH AL A #ES
parties are entities which a director and substantial e ETAEA Z RN TR -

shareholder of the Company has beneficial interests.

() Key management compensation (0 FEEEEHRM
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000

b 3 AT

Salaries and other short-term employee 34 & HAth 5 #4g & 18 £

benefits 5,618 5,603
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme BKGFI it 117 117
5,735 5,720
36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36. HAREE
As at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, a subsidiary of #20254E3 H31H f20244E3 H31H » AR
the Company has secured various performance bonds to ) ] R g 2 ) i H o 2 O R
its landlord of certain retail shops and suppliers, details as BERERTHR LB A0 - FERE IR ¢
follow:
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000

bl 3 AT

Security given by banks for performance  #RATH& L1 JE £ (775 &5 (-

bonds 7,715 7,738
At 31 March 2025, the directors do not consider it 20253 H31H » EHEW AR A Lak
probable that a claim will be made against the Group PEOR AL Bt R B T REE o

under the above guarantees.

1 61 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L

37. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE 37. AREEABERRFEAEREX
COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company ARIEEAER
2025 2024
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E BT AT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary B 2 W % 38 - -
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WA B I8 2 ) R a 767,830 767,830
Trade and other receivables & 5y Fe HoAth FEUS AR 20 301 261
Cash and cash equivalents B4 B 45 EHY) 2,079 2,022
770,210 770,113
Total assets EERE 770,210 770,113
EQUITY e
Share capital A 104,475 104,647
Treasury shares JEEAF ARy (698) -
Reserves ftifts b 34,745 34,714
Total equity RIEATE 138,522 139,361
LIABILITIES 8f&
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B4 ) B HCA A5 Rk 2,011 2,546
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST Bt I8 2 v R I a 629,677 628,206
Total liabilities BERE 631,688 630,752
Total equity and liabilities BRERGERE 770,210 770,113

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2025 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Joseph C.C. Wong

el

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

T RAITEAF

W@ (E20254E6 H 24 H bl B~ 5 A+

UREE

Liao Ching Mei
B

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

HATHH R BT

B () A RA A
2025 4FAFH)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L
-

37. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE 37. AREEABRREFHEEHXR D)

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: B 5
(@)  The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, (@) M S REAST B 2 04 R IE A SRR AT - e
interest-free and repayable on demand. SRR A -
(b)  Reserve movements of the Company (b) 2\ EIfkfh s E
Share Retained
premium profits Total
BAHE REEF e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
WA AT AT
At 1 April 2023 20234411 H 1,977 32,737 34,714
Loss for the year FNER - - -
At 31 March 2024 n202443 H31H 1,977 32,737 34,714
At 1 April 2024 "2024F4H1H 1,977 32,737 34,714
Loss for the year N - - -
Share repurchased and cancelled JBe A3 W 1 51 5 85 31 - 31
At 31 March 2025 A2025F3H31H 2,008 32,737 34,745
1 63 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L

38.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

38.

The principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2025 and 31 March

FRHWEBAT

#R20254E3 A31H K20244F3H31H » %

2024 are: BiHJeg 2wl an s
Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Group (%)
Particulars of share capital issued ~ SEFTEREN
Place of incorporation/ ERTRE Bat
operation Principal activities Number Value
LA -3 TEER R®  SREE 2025 2024
Investment &
Stelux Holdings International British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
Group (BVI) Limited £ g fERR 1578
Stelux Holdings Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 1,000 HKS$1 100 100
ECEE M ARAR i SRR AP
Stelux Investments and Properties  British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
(BVI) Limited SR AT BRpE ESTr
Thong Sia (BVI) Company Limited  British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
PR LR R 157
CC Group (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
ES gl BERR [ESH
Stelux Watch Group (BVI) Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 US$1 100 100
£ I gily HEER (ES
City Chain (Bermuda) Holdings Bermuda Investment holding 12,000 Us$1 100 100
Limited A e 157
Stelux Watch Group (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong Investment holding 2 HK$1 100 100
Limited G hactidi b
Property#)%
City Chain Properties Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HKS$1 100 100
RS TR A ) ik ESrecT oAb
Oswald Property Management Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$100 100 100
Company Limited it YR G 007
Stelux Properties Agency Limited  Hong Kong Property agency and 2 HK$1 100 100
DERAHRAR Trifs management L b
BN 3L

OB () A RA TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBMRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 431 H 1L
-

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. XEMBAT )

Percentage of equity

attributable to the
Group (%)
Particulars of share capital issued ~ SEFTEREEH
Place of incorporation/ ERITRA BAL
operation Principal activities Number Value
MR S TEER B®  SREE 2025 2024
Retailing and trading ZER E 5
City Chain Company Limited Hong Kong Watch retailing 250,000 HK$100 100 100
i ] i g A R 2 1) i BT w1007
City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch retailing 3,333,333 RM1 100 100
AR HRTE 147
City Chain (Macau) Company Macau Watch retailing 2 MOP5,000 100 100
Limited far T LNk
WL S (AR Y) A PR 2 5,0007C
City Chain Stores (S) Pte Limited ~ Singapore Watch retailing 1,800,000 S$1 100 100
s sk Mg T
City Chain (Thailand) Company Thailand Watch retailing 200,000 Baht100 100 100
Limited RE BT E 100% 8
210,000? Baht100
10054k
Pronto Watch SA Switzerland Watch distribution 100 SFr1,000 100 100
Bt ik 1,000% £
HH
Solvil et Titus SA Switzerland Watch distribution 300 SFr1,000 100 100
Hit: L E YT 1,000% £
HH
CYMA SA Switzerland Watch distribution 100,000 SFr1 100 100
Bt Sk 8 [BiRwis
Lissignol Sarl Switzerland Watch distribution 200 SFr100 100 100
Bt Sk 1005 1308
Stelux International Licensing Bahamas Trademark holding and 2 Us$1 100 100
Limited B licensing 1%
A R ar AR
Stelux Watch Limited Hong Kong Watch supply chain 1,000,000 HK$1 100 100
oA A rifs management L AP
SRR

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2025
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FREMBBRME
For the year ended 31 March 2025 #%20254:3 731 H 1L

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. XEMBAT )

Percentage of equity

attributable to the
Particulars of share capital issued/ Group (%)
paid up capital SEFTEERN
Place of incorporation/ DRITRE/BRER Bokl
operation Principal activities Number Value
ERUAE ) TEEH K®  SREE 2025 204
Retailing and trading (Continued)
FERES (@)
Thong Sia Watch Company Hong Kong Watch distribution 80,000 HK$10 100 100
Limited ik Sk 07T
TEIESA R
Stelux Trading (International) Hong Kong Watch distribution 2 HKS$1 100 100
Limited Ei sk o b
Thong Sia Company (Singapore) ~ Singapore Watch distribution 2,000,000 S§1 100 100
Pte Limited s Sk A
Thong Sia Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch distribution 1,000,000 RM1 976  97.6
SR Sk 9 1487
Catena SA Switzerland manufacture of watch 1,016,667 SFr1 100 100
Bt movements [Biminiy
TFHEECRERN
Stelux Thong Sia (Guangdong) The PRC (foreign-invested ~ Watch retailing, trading HK$270,000,000 100 100
Trading Limited commercial enterprise) and related services
FOLH (B iR AIRAR /e K B (31 ST B R 270,000,007
RERERE il e
Note: B 5E -
(a)  Non-redeemable preference shares. (@) AR B
(b)  100% equity interest included 88% of equity interest and a (b)  100%7HE 5 6145 8 8% AL I LA A w2 I i

right to purchase 12% of equity interest.

1 2% A HE

OB () A RA TR

2025 4FAFH)
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